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2. Corporate Structure 
 

2.1 The full corporate name of the Issuer is Newlox Gold Ventures Corp. The address of 

the Issuer's head office is Suite 2000 – 1500 W Georgia St. Vancouver, B.C. V6G 2Z6 

and the registered office is 1150 -750 West Pender St.,Vancouver, BC. V6C 2T8. 

 

2.2 Newlox Gold Ventures Corp. (“Newlox” or the “Company”) was incorporated under 

the Business Corporations Act (British Columbia) on April 7, 2011 as a wholly-owned 

subsidiary of Tulox Resources Corp. (“Tulox”). On April 8, 2011, Newlox entered into 

an arrangement agreement (the “Arrangement Agreement”) with Tulox, and another 

party, for the purposes of divesting certain non-core assets (the “Arrangement”), 

specifically, an interest in the Tulox Property (the “Tulox Property”).  The 

Arrangement received shareholder approval on May 30, 2011 and approval by the 

Supreme Court of British Columbia on June 3, 2011.  

 

2.3 The Issuer has no subsidiaries 

 

2.4 The Issuer is not requalifying following a fundamental change or proposing an 

acquisition, amalgamation, merger, reorganization or arrangement.  

 

2.5 This section is not applicable 

 

3. General Development of the Business 
 

3.1 On April 8, 2011, Newlox entered into an arrangement agreement (the “Arrangement 

Agreement”) with Tulox Resources Corp. (“Tulox”), now named Argentium Resources 

Inc. (symbol:AOK), for the purposes of divesting certain non-core assets (the 

“Arrangement”), specifically, an interest in the Tulox Property (the “Tulox Property” or 

the “Property”).  The Arrangement received shareholder approval on May 30, 2011 and 

approval by the Supreme Court of British Columbia on June 3, 2011. 

  

 Pursuant to the Arrangement Tulox assigned its interest in the Tulox Property to the 

Company on July 7, 2011 and arranged for the transfer of $5,000 cash on August 23, 

2011 in exchange for 7,800,911 Newlox shares, which shares were distributed to the 

Tulox shareholders (“Arrangement Shares”) who held Tulox shares as of August 25, 

2011. As a result of completing the Arrangement and subsequent to issuing the 

Arrangement Shares, the Company became a reporting issuer in the jurisdictions of 

British Columbia and Alberta. 

 

  The option on the Tulox property was granted by Amarc Resources Ltd. ("Amarc") 

listed on the TSX Venture Exchange under the symbol AHR and subsequently 

agreement with the Company to replace any prior agreement by the former parent of 

the Company pursuant to an Option Agreement dated December 15, 2011 for which 

details are provided below. 
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 Pursuant to the agreement dated December 15, 2011 with Amarc the Company may 

acquire a 100% interest in the Tulox Property, which was previously held by Tulox 

Resources Inc. (now Argentium Resources Inc.) under the following terms: 

 

1) Issue 225,000 common shares in the capital of the Company, following the date of the 

execution of the agreement (now issued); 

2) Expenditures of $250,000 CDN and a further 225,000 common shares in the capital 

of the Company on or before December 30, 2012;  

3) Expenditures of $250,000 CDN and a further 225,000 common shares in the capital 

of the Company on or before April 30, 2013;  

4) a further $500,000 CDN of expenditures and 550,000 common shares in the capital of 

the Company on or before December 30, 2013; 

5) an additional $1,000,000 CDN of expenditures and 1,100,000 common shares in the 

capital of the Company on or before December 1, 2014; 

The Company will earn a 50% interest in the Property upon spending the first $1,000,000 

and issuance of 1,225,000 shares and will earn a 100% interest in the Property on 

expenditure of the next $1,000,000 on the property and issuance of 1,100,000 shares by 

December 1, 2014. 

On the preparation of a preliminary economic assessment or pre-feasibility study by the 

Company, Amarc may obtain a 60% interest in the Property by completing an additional 

$10 million of mineral exploration expenditures on the Property (the “Back in Right”). 

On commencement of commercial production Amarc will be paid a 3% Net Smelter 

Returns (“NSR”) which reverts to a 1.2 % NSR in the event Amarc exercises the Back in 

Right to obtain 60% interest. 

The Tulox Property consists of 11 claims located in south-central British Columbia in the 

Clinton Mining Division approximately 65km east-southeast of the town of 70 Mile 

House. Exploration surveys done by Amarc Resources in 2005 and 2006 outlined two 

distinct gold anomalies in soil and till as well as an adjacent induced polarization (IP) 

anomaly to the east (Yeager, 2007). The anomalies identified by Amarc require further 

exploratory work to better define targets for gold-bearing mineralization. The Company 

is embarking on further geophysical and soil geochemical surveying to delineate and 

confirm recommended drill targets.  

 

3.2 No significant acquisition or disposition has been completed by the Issuer or any 

significant probable acquisition proposed by the Issuer. 

 

 

4 Narrative Description of the Business 
 

4.1 General  
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(1) The Issuer has only one operating segment, the exploration of its mineral 

property. 

 

(a) The Issuer expects to complete the phase I recommended program at a 

minimum recommended at a budget of $168,350 in the forthcoming 12-

month period, which would be preceded by the raising of an additional 

$300,000 to $500,000 in exploration funding; 

 

(b) The timing of significant milestones relate directly to the commitments in 

the option agreement with Amarc described above requiring minimum 

expenditures of $250,000 by December 30, 2012, and another $250,000 by 

April 30, 2013; 

 

(c) The total funds available to the Issuer: 

 

(i) the estimated consolidated working capital  as of the most recent 

month end prior to filing the Listing Statement is $100,000 in cash or 

equivalents on hand, and 

 

(ii) The Issuer intends to raise further funds on listing to carry out the 

milestones outlined in (1) (b). 

 

(d)  

Use of Proceeds Cost 

CNSX Fees 6 mos $13,000 

Legal and Accounting Offering 

Expenses 

$35,000 

Claim Maintenance $25,000 

Working Capital $27,000 

Total $100,000 

Property Expenditures $250,000 

Total after all Funding $350,000 

 

The Issuer intends to raise further funds after listing. 
 

4.3 Information required by Appendix A 

 

 (1) Property Description and Location – The following represents information 

summarized from a technical report dated April 12, 2012 prepared by Wesley Raven 

P.Geo., an independent qualified geologist, prepared pursuant to the provisions of 

National Instrument 43-101 (the “Technical Report”). 
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(a)  The Tulox Property is located in south-central British Columbia in the Clinton 

Mining Division and is shown on NTS maps 092P/02 and 092P/07, or BCGS 

maps 092P.026, 092P.027, 092P.036 and 092P37. The approximate center of the 

claim group is positioned 40 kilometres east-southeast of the village of 70 Mile 

House at 51º 16’ 40” North Latitude, 120º 51’ 08” West Longitude, or in UTM 

Zone 10 (NAD 83) 5,682,900 mN, 649,800 mE (Figure 1). The property is 

comprised of 11 contiguous mineral claims that encompass an area of 5,438.30 

hectares.  

 

(b) The mineral claims give the holder rights to the subsurface minerals, there are no 

surface rights associated with the claims. All claims are due to expire on May 31, 

2012. In order to keep the claims in good standing exploration work or cash-in-

lieu must be filed with the Mining Recorder’s Office, in years 1-3 the requirement 

is $4/ha per year with a filing fee of $0.40/ha/year and in subsequent years 

$8/ha/yr with the same filing fee. All of the claims comprising the property 

require annual expenditures of $8/ha/yr to maintain the claims in good standing. 

  

 The author is not aware of any legal surface rights that would affect legal access 

to the property but there are a number of ranches in the area that should be 

consulted about access to the property before commencing a work program. In 

addition, there are several district lots that encompass portions of the mineral 

claims. The author does not know what rights these lots have and strongly 

suggests that Newlox obtain a legal opinion on the rights associated with the lots 

and ascertain any impact these may have on exploration programs. All of the 

district lots are registered in the District of Lillooet. The lot numbers and the 

claims on which they exist are shown in Table 2 of the report. 

 

 Amarc Resources Ltd. (FMC Number 146093) is the registered 100% owner of 

the claims as shown on Table 1. Tenure locations are shown on Figure 2a, the 

claim position from 2008 is shown on Figure 2b with the current tenures 

comprising the property highlighted in yellow. 

 

Table 1: Tenure 
Tenure Claim Owner Map Date of Expiry Area 

Number Name   Number Acquisition Date (y/m/d) (ha) 

519088 JOE 33 

146093 

(100%) 092P 2005/AUG/15 
2012/Sept/30 

505.65 

519090 JOE 34 

146093 

(100%) 092P 2005/AUG/15 
2012/Sept/30 

505.65 

519420 JOE 38 

146093 

(100%) 092P 2005/AUG/26 
2012/Sept/30 

505.42 

519421 JOE 39 

146093 

(100%) 092P 2005/AUG/26 
2012/Sept/30 

505.43 

524206 JOE 40 

146093 

(100%) 092P 2005/DEC/21 
2012/Sept/30 

484.97 

524207 JOE 41 

146093 

(100%) 092P 2005/DEC/21 
2012/Sept/30 

484.97 

530948 JOE 44 146093 092P 2006/MAR/31 2012/Sept/30 484.97 
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(100%) 

542443 JOE 46 

146093 

(100%) 092P 2006/OCT/04 
2012/Sept/30 

485.04 

542488 JOE 64 

146093 

(100%) 092P 2006/OCT/04 
2012/Sept/30 

505.42 

542489 JOE 65 

146093 

(100%) 092P 2006/OCT/04 
2012/Sept/30 

485.31 

542490 JOE 66 

146093 

(100%) 092P 2006/OCT/04 
2012/Sept/30 

485.47 

Total = 5,438.30 

 

 

 

(c) The Company will earn a 50% interest in the Property upon spending the first 

$1,000,000 and issuance of 1,225,000 shares and will earn a 100% interest in the 

Property on expenditure of the next $1,000,000 on the property and issuance of 

1,100,000 shares by December 1, 2014. 

 

 On the preparation of a preliminary economic assessment or pre-feasibility study 

by the Company, Amarc may obtain a 60% interest in the Property by completing 

an additional $10 million of mineral exploration expenditures on the Property (the 

“Back in Right”). On commencement of commercial production the Optionor will 

be paid a 3% Net Smelter Returns (“NSR”) which reverts to a 1.2 % NSR  in the 

event Amarc exercises the Back in Right to obtain 60% interest. 

 

(d) The author is unaware of any environmental liabilities associated with the Tulox 

property. 

 

 The only risk factor the author is aware of that may impact work programs on the 

property is the nature of the District Lots that encompass portions of the claims as 

listed in Table 2. As stated previously Newlox should obtain a legal opinion on 

what rights are associated with these lots. 

 

(e) No mineral deposit has been identified on the mineral claims. There are numerous 

epithermal quartz vein and quartz vein stockwork occurrences in the district and 

the writer speculates the most likely source of the gold causing the geochemical 

anomalies in surficial deposits would be gold-bearing epithermal quartz veins. 

However other types of gold deposits such as a skarn or porphyry-types cannot be 

ruled out.  

 

 

(f) Depending upon the nature of the exploration program work permits may be 

required, usually dependent upon activities creating surface disturbance, such as 

road building, trenching, diamond drilling, etc. Processing of permit application 

can take 4-6 months, depending upon the extent of the program and the backlog in 

processing the application. Newlox has not applied for a mineral Notice of Work 

at the time of this report. 
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(2) ACCESSIBILITY, CLIMATE, LOCAL RESOURCES, INFRASTRUCTURE 

AND PHYSIOGRAPHY 

 

 The property is road accessed from the north via 70 Mile House, BC and 

from the south via Kamloops, BC and Savona, BC. The southern access is 

from Savona via the Deadman River - Vidette Lake Forest Service Road, a 

distance of approximately 60 km. 

 

 The northern access from 70 Mile House is via the North Bonaparte - Egan 

Lake Forest Service Road, a distance of approximately 65 km. 

 

 From either 70 Mile House or Savona there is excellent access throughout 

much of the property provided by a multitude of both major and minor 

logging roads, many of which are subject to active logging operations. 

 

 The Tulox property is situated in the Interior Plateau Physiographic Region 

of British Columbia. The general topography is one of gently rolling hills, 

ranging from 1,000 metres to 1,400 metres in elevation. The area is forested 

with poplar, willow, spruce, pine and fir. Average temperatures in 70 Mile 

House are 15.2 º C in summer and -8.5 º C in winter, with annual rainfall 

and snowfall averaging 29.43 centimetres and 159 centimetres respectively 

(B.C. Ministry of Forests Public Website). A typical working season would 

be from May to the end of October, depending upon snowpack levels. 

 

 The forest and mineral resource-based communities of Kamloops, Savona, 

Ashcroft, Clinton, 70 Mile House, 100 Mile House, Williams Lake, 

Clearwater, Little Fort and Barriere, each approximately a one to two hour 

drive from the property, can supply all materials and labour for exploration 

and mine development. These communities are serviced by paved 

Government maintained highways, Canadian National Railway or Canadian 

Pacific Railway and high capacity electrical transmission lines capable of 

supplying a large mining and milling facility. Lakes and rivers in the district 

have the capacity to supply large volumes of fresh process water. 

 

(3) History - Describe: 

 

(a) Most of the historical exploration on what is now the Tulox property was 

undertaken near the southwestern portion of the claim block in the general 

vicinity of the old Vidette gold mine that is located approximately 8.8 km to 

the south of the southern boundary of the Joe 66 claim (Figure 2a). 

 

 In 2005 Amarc Resources Ltd. (Amarc) investigated two adjacent BC 

Government Regional Geochemical Survey (RGS) low contrast 35 and 79 

ppb gold stream sediment silt anomalies in the lower reaches of Joe Ross 
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Creek east-northeast of Vidette Lake (Figure 3). Detailed silt sampling by 

Amarc in Joe Ross Creek and in a tributary returned highly anomalous 

concentrations of gold. Near the up-stream termination of the anomaly in 

Three Gram Creek, (informal name), one silt sample returned 2930 ppb gold 

(Figure 3). Approximately 11.5 km to the northwest, reconnaissance silt 

sampling returned anomalous gold concentrations identifying the Scot Creek 

area as a potential source for the gold. These areas are underlain by Lower 

Triassic Nicola Group mafic volcanic and volcaniclastic rocks intruded by 

large Jurassic granodiorite-quartz diorite plutons in part unconformably 

overlain by Tertiary sedimentary and mafic volcanic rocks. 

 

 To explore for the source of the gold in the Joe Ross Creek - Three Gram 

Creek area approximately 1,510 soil samples were collected in two main 

grids and from reconnaissance traverses. Several samples returned 

anomalous gold concentrations scattered across a broad area. Note: The 

claims encompassing this area have been allowed to lapse and do not form 

part of the current Tulox Property. 

 

 Not convinced that the source of the gold had been identified by the soil 

geochemical survey, Amarc undertook an analysis of the geomorphology 

and drainage patterns in the district. It was concluded that the gold in the 

anomalous Joe Ross - Three Gram Creeks may have been winnowed from 

the reworking of gold transported in glacial till from the northwest to the 

southeast. To continue exploration for the source of the gold Amarc then 

undertook a lodgment till sampling program. A total of 152, ten kg samples 

were collected on approximately 500 m centers for a distance of 16 km in 

the up-ice direction to the north of anomalous Joe Ross and Three Gram 

creeks covering an area of approximately 70 square km (Figure 4). In an 

attempt to quantify the large statistical variance observed in some samples 

the entire sample was screened to -230 mesh and the undersize fine material 

was routinely analyzed in triplicate. Four areas with anomalous 

concentrations of gold were identified along a northwest-southeast trend. 

Till Anomalies 1, 3 and 4 are gold-only anomalies (not part of the current 

Tulox Property), whereas gold Anomaly 2 (Scot Creek) returned associated 

low-order anomalous concentrations of base metals and silver. The till 

results support the possibility that the anomalous gold concentrations found 

in the Scot Creek reconnaissance silt samples may also indicate a source for 

the gold within the Joe Ross and Three Gram Creeks drainage (Figure 4). 

The till and silt results mutually support a potential source for the gold in the 

Scot Creek drainage. 

 

 An airborne magnetic survey, using a 200 m traverse line spacing, covering 

approximately 152 square kilometres was flown over the area of the four 

gold in till anomalies (Sander Geophysics Limited of Ottawa, Ontario under 

the management of Geoscience BC and the Geologic Survey of Canada, 
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Kaplon, Rafael J. 2007). A discrete positive magnetic anomaly underlies in 

the Scot Creek area of till Anomaly 2 (Figure 5). 

 

 A 36 line-km grid over till Anomaly 2 in the Scot Creek area was covered 

by detailed soil geochemical and geological surveys. As well, ground 

magnetic, induced polarization and resistivity surveys were done by Peter E. 

Walcott & Associates Ltd. (Figures 6 to 10). The 1,434 sample soil survey 

identified two areas of particular interest. 

 

 Soil Anomaly 1 

 Near the center of the grid (5,683,200N, 650200E) a cluster of soil samples 

outline a zone of high gold concentrations ranging from 100 ppb gold to a 

high of 752 ppb gold that coincides closely with the core of the till gold 

Anomaly 2 (Figure 6). This soil anomaly occurs where Tertiary Miocene 

tuffaceous wackes unconformably overlie an Upper Triassic aged medium 

to course-grained granodiorite pluton at its contact with a fine-grained 

quartz diorite stock that is reflected by a high contrast magnetic feature 

lying to the immediate east (Figure 8). Coincident IP chargeability-

resistivity anomalies (5,683,100N, 650,800E) are centered immediately to 

the east of and up-slope from the gold soil anomaly (Figures 9, 10). 

 

 Soil Anomaly 2 

 In the south-central part of the grid (5,682,000N, 650,300E), near the 

granodiorite-diorite contact, a moderate intensity, multi-element silver-lead 

soil anomaly with a tenuous copper-gold-zinc-arsenic association remains 

open up-slope to the south (Figure 7). 

 

 This anomaly is underlain by a body of Upper Triassic quartz diorite and 

appears to lie approximately at the up-ice termination of a dispersion train 

that was determined from the till sampling results (Yeager, 2006) to be 

anomalous in a suite of base and precious metals, including gold. A large 

area of strong positive magnetic response characterizes the rocks underlying 

most of the southern portion of the airborne survey. This area is largely 

underlain by strongly magnetic Miocene Chilcotin Group basaltic rocks.  

 Induced Polarization. 

 

 A distinct zone of I.P. chargeability high values occurs centred at 

approximately UTM 5,683,100mN, 650,700mE (Figure 9). This anomaly 

occurs immediately upslope from the high gold in soils anomaly and could 

well be related to it. A second, weaker one-line high chargeability anomaly 

occurs approximately 150m to the southwest at UTM 5,682,600mN, 

649,350mE. 

 

 Two distinct zones of resistivity high values occur centred at approximately 

UTM 5,682,700mN, 685,150mE and UTM 5,683,100mN, 650,700mE 

(Figure 10). The eastern anomaly is coincident with the high chargeability 
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anomaly described in the previous paragraph. The location of the western 

anomaly is roughly coincident with the location of the high gold in soils 

anomaly. The long axes of both anomalies are oriented north-south. 

Chargeability and resistivity results both suggest that there may be an 

anomalous area along the southern edge of the Scot Creek grid that is open 

to the south, similar to the soil sample results. 

 

 Magnetics 

 The ground borne magnetometer results generally agree with the airborne 

magnetometer survey results, and suggest structural direction trends that 

tend to bound the soil geochemical and I.P anomalies. 

 

(b) The property was not acquired by the Issuer from, an insider or promoter of 

the Issuer or an associate or affiliate of an insider or promoter, Amarc is one 

of the Hunter Dickenson Group of companies a large exploration and 

mining group of companies. 

 

(4) Geological Setting —  

 The Tulox property lies within the Quesnel terrane, interpreted as a volcanic 

arc terrane that spans almost the entire length of the Canadian Cordillera in 

British Columbia. Situated in the Intermontane Belt, the Quesnel terrane is 

primarily represented by Middle to Upper Triassic volcanic and sedimentary 

rocks, designated as the Nicola Group in the south. These rocks are locally 

overlain by Lower Jurassic volcanic and sedimentary rock, and are cut by 

several suites of Late Triassic to Early Jurassic plutons. Specifically, the 

Tulox group of claims includes the following lithologies: Chilcotin Group, 

Nicola Group, and two differentiated intrusive suites (Figure 11). 

 

 Chilcotin Group (MiPICvb) 

 The Miocene to Pleistocene Chilcotin Group comprises the Deadman River 

and Chasm Formations. The Deadman River Formation lithologies include: 

rhyolite ach, tuffaceous sandstone, siltstone, and shale. The Chasm 

Formation includes vesicular and amygdaloidal basalt flows. 

 

 Nicola Group (uTrNvb) 

 The Upper Triassic Nicola Group comprises a north-trending belt of 

volcanic, volcanoclastic and sedimentary rocks. These lithologies have a 

lower greenschist metamorphic grade, and are intruded by Late Triassic to 

Early Jurassic comagmatic plutons. 

 

 Granodiorite (LTrJgd) 

 The Late Triassic to Early Jurassic unnamed LTrJgd lithology comprises a 

granodioritic intrusive unit. 

 

 Syenite to Monzonite (LTrJsy) 
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 The Late Triassic to Early Jurassic unnamed LTrJsy unit comprises a 

syenitic to monzonitic intrusive unit. 

 

 No zones of significant mineralization or alteration are known on the 

mineral claims as outcrop is relatively rare and overburden cover is 

extensive. 

 

 More recent work by Amarc did outline areas of interest that led to 

additional exploration surveys and it is these areas that have the most 

potential for mineral exploration. 

 

        In the lower reaches of Joe Ross Creek two gold stream sediment anomalies 

(35 and 79 ppb gold) were discovered from the BC Government Regional 

Geochemical Survey. Reconnaissance silt sampling also outlined anomalous 

gold samplis in the Scot Creek area. Detailed silt sampling by Amarc in Joe 

Ross Creek and a tributary creek, informally named Three Gram Creek, 

returned one highly anomalous silt sample assaying 2930 ppb gold. This 

was followed up with soil sampling in two grids and some reconnaissance 

lines which revealed several anomalous gold concentrations scattered across 

a broad area. 

 

 Amarc was not convinced that the gold anomalies in Joe Ross and Three 

Gram Creeks had been identified by the soil geochemical survey so they 

undertook geomorpholocical studies to determine ice flow directions. Till 

sampling indicated that the anomalous silt samples from Joe Ross and Three 

Gram Creeks may have originated from the Scot Creek area as the till 

samples outlined four anomalous areas. These were followed up with an 

airborne magnetic survey that outlined a magnetic anomaly beneath till 

anomaly 2. A 35 line-km grid was established over the area for detailed soil 

geochemical and geology surveys and an IP survey with the surveys 

indicating an anomalous area along the southern edge of Scot Creek grid 

that is open to the south. 

 

 INTERPRETATION AND CONCLUSIONS 

 Southeasterly flowing glacial ice transported fine particles of gold in till 

from an unknown source to the northwest of Joe Ross and Three Gram 

Creeks. This fine particulate free gold was concentrated by fluvial 

reworking in the southwesterly flowing Joe Ross Creek paleo-channel and 

gave rise to the stream sediment anomalies. Long distance glacial transport 

of the gold in till also gives a plausible explanation for the widely scattered 

anomalous soil samples in the Joe Ross Creek area and the lack of coherent 

multi-sample anomalies more indicative of a local source. The up-ice cluster 

of lodgement till gold anomalies in spatial association with the Scot Creek 

stream silt and soil Anomaly 1 may reflect an underlying bedrock source for 

the gold. Alternately the source of the gold may be associated with the 

induced polarization anomaly that is located a few hundred metres up slope. 
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Both the induced polarization target and soil Anomaly 1 warrant drill 

testing. Furthermore, multi-element, silver-lead soil Anomaly 2 remains 

open to the south and warrants the extension of the soil and induced 

polarization surveys for at least 800 m to the south to potentially define 

additional drill targets.  

 

 The author is unaware of any significant risks or uncertainties that could 

affect the exploration data gathered to date. The information was collected 

systematically and in accordance with industry accepted practices. The only 

potential risk are the two District Lots to the south of the Scot Creek grid 

which may limit the ability to explore in that direction until the rights 

associated with the lots are determined. If it is privately held land an 

arrangement can be made with the landholder for access. 

 

 In conclusion the Scot Creek area represents a valid exploration target. The 

area hosts multi-element soil geochemical anomalies with coincident 

magnetic and electromagnetic anomalies that are worthy of additional 

exploration to determine the source of the anomaly. Rock outcrop is not 

abundant on the Scot creek grid so the surveys done to date were necessary 

to focus in on an area of interest that could not be readily determined on the 

basis of anomalous, surface rock samples. 

 

      (5) Exploration Information — Newlox Gold Ventures Corp. has not completed 

any exploration work on the property. 

 

(6) Mineralization — No mineral deposit has been identified on the mineral 

claims. There are numerous epithermal quartz vein and quartz vein 

stockwork occurrences in the district and the writer speculates the most 

likely source of the gold causing the geochemical anomalies in surficial 

deposits would be gold-bearing epithermal quartz veins. However other 

types of gold deposits such as a skarn or porphyry-types cannot be ruled out.  

 

(7) Drilling — No drilling is known to have been done on the property. 

 

(8) Sampling and Analysis  

 

 Newlox has not conducted sampling on the property and, therefore, no sample 

preparation or analyses have been done. 

 

(9) DATA VERIFICATION 

  

 The author did not verify all of the data relied up on in this report. The Till 

geochemistry data was collected on behalf of the Ministry of Energy, Mines and 

Petroleum Resources of British Columbia, the details of which are in Open File 

1997-9. The author reviewed the data provided by Sitec Ventures and 0789982 

BC Ltd. and the geochemical assessment report by D. Yeager, (2006) Assessment 
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Report 28680. It is the author's opinion that the sampling methodology, sample 

preparation, security and analytical procedures used by Sitec Ventures and 

0789982 BC Ltd. and the laboratory were both adequate and conducted in 

compliance with standard industry accepted practices at the time of the work. The 

laboratory used was independent of 0789982 BC Ltd. And Sitec Ventures. 

 

(10) Mineral Resources and Mineral Reserves — There are no known mineral 

resources or reserves on the Tulox property. 

 

(11) Mining Operations — Not applicable. 

 

(12) Exploration and Development  

  

 It is recommended that a two-phased exploration program be conducted to better 

define the anomalous areas on the Scot Creek target. Phase 1 would entail an 

expanded soil geochemical and geophysical surveys, magnetic and 

electromagnetic (IP) surveys and test trenching in areas of potentially thin 

overburden cover on the IP chargeability anomaly; Phase 2 would involve 

preliminary drill testing of the targets developed in the preceding phase. 

 

 The original grid established at Scot Creek was at 100 meter line spacing with 50 

metre spacing between stations. The soil samples were collected at 100 metre line 

spacing but the ground geophysical surveys were completed at 200 metre line 

spacing. It is recommended that the ground magnetic and IP geophysical surveys 

be completed on the lines not previously surveyed resulting in a 100 metre line 

spacing to match the data from the soil sampling program. The grid lines are old 

and will likely have to be brushed out, especially for the IP survey.  The data from 

the two generations of surveys should then be merged into one map. In addition, 

the multi-element silver-lead soil Anomaly 2, at the south end of the Scot Creek 

grid remains open to the south. Additional east-west lines at 100 metre spacing 

and 1 km long should be established for subsequent soil geochemical and 

geophysical (Mag, IP) surveys. Trenching should be considered over the central 

portion of the IP chargeability anomaly to test for depth of overburden. If 

overburden depths are not too great this may expose bedrock for sampling and aid 

in determining the source of the conductor. 

 

 Phase 2 would involve preliminary drill testing of the soil and IP anomalies. A 

modest program of approximately 1000 metres (5 holes each 200m in length) 

would provide good information across the length of the IP anomaly using a 200 

metres hole spacing. Even if the surveys in Phase 1 don’t add much additional 

information to the existing database the drilling would test the targets and likely 

determine their cause. 
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Phase 1: Geochemical, Geophysical grid coverage and Trenching 

 Linecutting 

  Brush out existing lines (30 line-km) 5,000.00 

  Cut new grid to south (8 line-km) 2,000.00 

 Soil Sampling: 

  8 line-km/line at 20 samples/km (160 samples @ $30/sample) 4,800.00 

 Magnetometer Survey 

  38 line-km @ $100/km 3,800.00 

 IP Survey 

  38 line-km at $3000/km 114,000.00 

 Transportation 

  Pickup truck, 30 days @ 125/day 3,750.00 

 Trenching 

  2 trenches, 100 m long with backhoe 20,000.00 

 Meals and Accommodations 

  120 man-days @ $125/day/man 15,000.00 

TOTAL PHASE 1 168,350.00 

 

Phase 2: Preliminary Diamond Drill Testing of Scot Creek Grid Targets 

 1000 metres at $300/metre all inclusive (drilling, wages, assays) 300,000.00 

TOTAL PHASE 2 300,000.00 

 

TOTAL PHASE 1 + PHASE 2 468,350.00 
 

 

5. Selected Consolidated Financial Information  
 

5.1 Selected Consolidated Financial Information 

The following table sets forth summary financial information for the Company for each of the 

periods indicated. This information has been summarized from the Company’s financial 

statements for these periods, and should only be read in conjunction with the financial 

statements, and accompanying notes. For the period from April 7, 2011 to August 25, 2011, the 

Company was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tulox.  The Company commenced its status as a 

reporting issuer on August 25, 2011 there were no operations for the year ended March 31, 2012 

and it paid cash in lieu the last quarter ending June 30, 2012 to maintain its claims in good 

standing until September 30, 2012. 
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Newlox Gold Ventures Corp. 

From April 7, 2011 

date of Incorporation to 

March 31, 2012 

(Audited) 

$ 

Total Revenue Nil 

Income from Operations:  

-- Net income (loss) (104,114) 

--per share (0.01) 

Current Assets 94,235 

Current Liabilities 22,799 

Working Capital (Deficit) 71,436 

Total Assets 
150,435 

Total Liabilities 22,799 

Cash dividends declared Nil 

Shareholder’s Equity      127,636  

Number of Common Shares 11,671,991 

 

5.2 Quarterly Information — 

 

  

 Newlox Gold 

Ventures Corp. 

Three months 

ended 

March 31, 2012 

$ 

Newlox Gold 

Ventures Corp. 

Three months 

ended 

March 31, 2012 

$ 

Newlox Gold 

Ventures Corp. 

Three months 

ended 

December 31, 

2011 

$ 

Newlox Gold 

Ventures Corp. 

From April 7, 

2011 

date of 

Incorporation 

to 

September  30, 

2011 

$ 

Total Revenue 
NIL Nil 

Nil Nil 
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Income from Operations: 
  

  

-- Net income (loss) (23,975) (45,222) (36,243) (22,649) 

--per share (.002) (.003) (0.01) (0.02) 

Current Assets 71,875 94,235 88,946 NIL 

Current Liabilities 24,414 22,799 28,838 17,649 

Working Capital (Deficit) 47,561 71,436 60,108 (17,649) 

Total Assets 128,075 150,435 145,146 56,200 

Total Liabilities 24,414 22,799 28,838 17,649 

Cash dividends declared NIL Nil Nil Nil 

Shareholder’s Equity  103,661     127,636

  

116,308 38,551 

Number of Common Shares 11,671,991 11,671,991 10,550,911 7,800,911 

 

5.3 Dividends  

 

(a) There is no restriction that could prevent the Issuer from paying dividends; and 

 

(b) the issuer has not paid any dividends and has no intention to and has not 

established a dividend policy. 

 

5.4 Foreign GAAP  

 

The Issuer's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 

Reporting Standards. 

 

6. Management's Discussion and Analysis 
 

Annual MD&A 

 

MD&A for the period From April 7, 2011 date of Incorporation to March 31, 2012 

 

6.1 Date 

This management discussion and analysis (“MD&A”) is dated as of July 26, 2012 and 

should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements of the Company for 
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the year ended March 31, 2012 and for the period from date of incorporation on April 7, 

2011 to March 31, 2012. (“Audited Financial Statements”). 

Our discussion in this MD&A is based on the Audited Financial Statements.  The 

Audited Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial 

Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). Unless expressly stated otherwise, all financial 

information is presented in Canadian dollars. 

All statements other than statements of historical fact in this MD&A are forward-looking 

statements.  These statements represent the Company’s intentions, plans, expectations 

and beliefs as of the date hereof, and are subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors 

of which many are beyond the control of the Company.  These factors could cause actual 

results to differ materially from such forward-looking statements.  Readers should not 

place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. The section on Future Cash 

Requirements and Risks and Uncertainties below states specific risks, in particular the 

Company’s need to raise further funds to meet the minimum expenditure terms of its 

main property option agreement. That represents the most significant overall risk as the 

main asset of the company could be forfeited if not otherwise kept in good standing by 

meeting exploration requirements or otherwise extending terms to maintain the 

agreement.  The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly revise these forward-

looking statements to reflect subsequent events or circumstances. 

 

6.2 Overall Performance 

 

Newlox Gold Ventures Corp. (“Newlox” or the “Company”) was incorporated under the 

Business Corporations Act (British Columbia) on April 7, 2011 as a wholly-owned 

subsidiary of Tulox Resources Corp. (“Tulox”).     On April 8, 2011, Newlox entered into 

an arrangement agreement (the “Arrangement Agreement”) with Tulox, for the purposes 

of divesting certain non-core assets (the “Arrangement”), specifically, an interest in the 

Tulox Property (the “Tulox Property”).  The Arrangement received shareholder approval 

on May 30, 2011 and approval by the Supreme Court of British Columbia on June 3, 

2011.  

Pursuant to the Arrangement Tulox assigned its interest in the Tulox Property to the 

Company on July 7, 2011 and arranged for the transfer of $5,000 cash on August 23, 

2011 in exchange for 7,800,911 Newlox shares, which shares were distributed to the 

Tulox shareholders (“Arrangement Shares”) who held Tulox shares as of August 25, 

2011. As a result of completing the Arrangement and subsequent to issuing the 

Arrangement Shares, the Company became a reporting issuer in the jurisdictions of 

British Columbia, Ontario and Alberta. 

The option on the Tulox property was granted by Amarc Resources Ltd. ("Amarc") and a 

subsequent agreement with the Company was entered into December 15, 2011 which 

replaces any prior agreement by the former parent of the Company. 
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The details of the Arrangement, pro-forma financial statements and all other relevant 

supporting documents are provided in an information circular prepared by Tulox dated 

May 3, 2011 and available at www.sedar.com. 

The Company is a development stage mineral property exploration company whose 

principal business following the completion of the Arrangement Agreement will be to 

earn an interest in the Tulox Property by commencing the exploration and development 

of the Tulox Property.  The Company may also acquire additional properties and carry 

out early stage exploration on such mineral properties and then sell, option or joint 

venture the properties.  

SELECTED ANNUAL INFORMATION 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

 
From April 7, 2011 

date of 

Incorporation to 

March 31, 2012 

$ 

Expenses 
 

 
Administrative Costs 669 

 

 
Consulting fees 13,575 

 

 
Legal Fees 24,783 

 

 
Management fees 28,350 

 

 
Mining Property Expenses 28,616 

 

 
Regulatory and transfer agent fees 8,121 

 

Net loss and comprehensive loss (104,114) 
 

 

For the period from April 7, 2011 to August 25, 2011, the Company was a wholly-owned 

subsidiary of Tulox.  The Company commenced its status as a reporting issuer on August 25, 

2011 there were no field operations for the period ended March 31, 2012 mining property 

expense was fees to the BC Mining Recorder Office to maintain the Tulox claims in good 

standing.  All expenses during the period were a result of maintaining the Tulox property in good 

standing and administrative costs resulting from the funding and organizing the company as a 

reporting Issuer. Geological consulting expenses consisted of preparation of an initial 

preparatory work phase to re-establish soil sample grids and ground magnetic and 

electromagnetic surveys to confirm drill targets prepared by Andrew Ganton G.I.T.. subsequent 
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to the period an updated 43-101 report   was prepared by Wesley Raven P.Geo dated April 13, 

2012. 

Additional Disclosure for Venture issuers without Significant Revenue 

Consulting Fees include $6,359 for contract bookkeeping and accounting costs to contractors to 

maintain the company accounting and reporting system. 

Management fees of $28,350 are to related parties as described in the section below: Related 

Parties, in respect of accrued management fees. Fees accrued to March 31, 2012 were to 3 

Directors, no further fees are being accrued as of March 31, 2012. The balance of fees owing are 

$13,998  which is net of amounts settled as shares for debt. 

Mining Property expense includes payments made to Amarc for BC mining recorder costs to 

maintain the claims in good standing for $3,745 and most of the balance is payment in shares 

under the option agreement 

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 

Financial Position 

 

As at March 31, 2012 

  
  
Cash and Recoverable 86,736 

Taxes recoverable 7,499 
Mineral property interest 56,200 

      
 

150,435 

        

Current liabilities   22,799 

  
Shareholders’ equity   127,636 

    
 

  150,435 

    Cash dividends declared per share   N/A- 

  
 

As at March 31, 2012, the Company had working capital of $71,436 and shareholders’ equity of 

$127,636.  

  

Changes in Cash Position 

 
From April 7, 2011 

to  

March 31, 2012 

Cash flows 
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From operating activities (57,264) 

  
From financing activities 139,000 

  
From investing activities 5,000 

   
 

  
Increase (decrease) in cash 86,736 

    
 

The Company’s cash position at March 31, 2012 was $86,736. The $86,736 change in cash 

during period ended March 31, 2012 was a result of the Company’s net loss being offset by an 

increase in payables for administrative costs resulting from the Arrangement and financing 

completed.  

During the period ended March 31, 2012, financing activities were for the issuance of shares to 

Tulox shareholders to complete the Arrangement and a net private placement of $139,000. 

Investing activities during the period ended March 31, 2012 is for HST recoverable. 

 

6.6 Summary of Quarterly Results  

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

 

From April 7, 2011 

to  

September 30, 2011 
$ 

Three months ended 

December 31, 2011 

$ 

Three months ended 

March 31, 2012 

$ 

Expenses 
   

 
Administrative Costs 

                                       

- 243 426 

 
Consulting fees 

7,352 
3,798 2,425 

 
Legal Fees 

- 
8,622 16,161 

 
Management fees 

10,584 
8,316 9,450 

 
Mining Property Expenses 

- 
13,120 15496 

 
Regulatory and transfer agent fees 

4,713 
2,144 1,264 

Net loss and comprehensive loss (22,649) (36,243) (45,222) 

 
 

 

6.7 Liquidity -  

 

(a) The Issuer is entirely dependant on raising capital or joint venture 

participation to meet the Issuer’s planned exploration development 

activities. The ability to raise such funds depends on a number of factors 

including investor interest in the issuer’s particular property and 

asse3sment of management as well as general market conditions. 

 

(b) The Company believes that its current plans and requirements can be 

funded largely from existing cash on hand but is necessary to raise 
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additional working capital or enter into a joint venture with a third party to 

develop the Tulox property to the full extent recommended and to meet 

the expenditure requirement of $250,000 by December 30, 2012.  To the 

extent that the Company continues to incur losses and these resources are 

insufficient to fund the Company’s recurring losses until profitability is 

reached, the Company will need to raise additional funds through debt or 

equity financing.  Current market conditions have made it more difficult to 

raise additional funds. No assurance can be given that additional financing 

will be available, or that it can be obtained on terms acceptable to the 

Company and its shareholders.  If adequate funds are not available, the 

Company may be required to delay future mineral exploration 

expenditures or property acquisitions. 

 

(c) Expenditures on the Tulox property are scalable to allow preliminary work 

to keep the property in good standing and allow time to raise funding 

while listed, therefore the entire recommended work program can be 

paced to accommodate working capital available.  

 

(d) As at March 31, 2012, the Company’s financial instruments consists of 

cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and 

accrued liabilities, and amounts due to related parties. Cash and cash 

equivalents are carried at fair value using a level 1 fair value 

measurement.  The carrying value of accounts receivable, accounts 

payable and accrued liabilities approximate their fair value because of 

their nature and respective maturity dates or durations. 

 

Unless otherwise noted, it is management’s option that the Company is not 

exposed to significant credit, liquidity or market risks arising from these financial 

instruments.  The fair value of these financial instruments approximates their 

carrying value, unless otherwise noted. 

 

 

(e) The Issuer doesn’t expects to have a working capital deficiency, and 

operates with nominal overhead. 

 

(f) There are no balance sheet conditions or income or cash flow items that 

may affect the Issuer’s liquidity other than the need to raise outside capital 

as the Issuer doesn’t generate revenue. 

 

(g) Not Applicable 

 

(h) Not Applicable 

 

6.8 Capital Resources  
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(a) Pursuant to the Amarc agreement the Issuer is required to conduct 

$250,000 of expenditure on the Tulox Property by December 30, 2012. 

This represents its major expenditure commitment and must be funded by 

additional capital raised unless the obligation can be transferred in a joint 

venture.  

 

(b) There are no known trends or expected fluctuations in the Issuer’s capital 

resources. 

 

(c) There are no sources of financing that the Issuer has arranged but not yet 

used. 

 

6.9 There are no Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements  

 

6.10 Transactions with Related Parties  

 

The Company and Tulox, its former parent company, entered into the 

Arrangement Agreement described in Note 3 of the audited financial statements 

for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012. 

The Arrangement Agreement provides for the transfer from Tulox of $5,000 and 

the interest in the Tulox Property to the Company, as a wholly-owned subsidiary, 

and the immediate distribution of a controlling interest in the common shares of 

the Company to the shareholders of Tulox as at August 25, 2011. The 

shareholders of Tulox at the completion of the Arrangement Agreement continued 

to collectively own the interest in the Tulox Property, albeit through an altered 

corporate structure. Consequently, given that there will be no substantive change 

in the beneficial ownership of the option agreement at the time that it is 

transferred to the Company, the transfer will be recorded under IFRS using the 

historical carrying values of the interest in the Tulox Property in the accounts of 

Tulox at the time of the transfer. 

 

During the year ended March 31, 2012, the Company incurred $5,100 in 

management fees from a company owned and controlled by its President and at 

March 31, 2012 the Company owes the President and his company $4,614 for 

management fees which have been included in due to related parties. 

 

During the year ended March 31, 2012, the Company incurred $13,800 in 

management fees from a company owned and controlled by a Director and at 

March 31, 2012 the Company owes the Director and his company $9,384 for 

management fees which have been included in due to related parties. 

 

All transactions with related parties have occurred in the normal course of 

operations and are measured at their fair value as determined by management. 

Unless otherwise indicated, the period-end balances are unsecured, non-interest 

bearing, without specific terms of repayment and have arisen from advances or 

the provision of services and fees described. 
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6.11 Fourth Quarter  

Consulting Fees include Geological consultant fees and for contract bookkeeping 

and accounting costs to contractors , legal Fees of $16,161 in the quarter were up 

from $8,622 the previous quarter due to the conclusion of the Plan of 

Arrangement and registration of the Issuer as a reporting Issuer. Management fees 

of $9,450 are to to 3 Directors. No further fees are being accrued as of March 31, 

2012. The balance of fees owing are $13,998 which is net of amounts settled as 

shares for debt. 

Mining Property expense of $15,496 includes payments made to Amarc for BC 

mining recorder costs to maintain the claims in good standing and payment in 

shares under the option agreement 

 

6.12 Proposed Transactions – There are no proposed transactions. 

 

6.13 Changes in Accounting Policies including Initial Adoption: 

 

(a) Future changes in accounting policies 

 

The Company has reviewed new and revised accounting pronouncements that 

have been issued but are not yet effective and determined that the following may 

have an impact on the Company: 

 

IFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”: 

 

As of January 1, 2013, the Company will be required to adopt IFRS 9, “Financial 

Instruments”, which is the result of the first phase of the IASB’s project to replace 

IAS 39, “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”. The new 

standard replaces the current multiple classification and measurement models for 

financial assets and liabilities with a single model that has only two classification 

categories: amortized cost and fair value. The adoption of this standard should not 

have a material impact on the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements. 

 

IFRS 10, “Consolidated Financial Statements”: 

 

IFRS 10 is a new standard which identifies the concept of control as the 

determining factor in assessing whether an entity should be included in the 

consolidated financial statements of the parent company.  Control is comprised of 

three elements:  power over an investee; exposure to variable returns from an 

investee; and the ability to use power to affect the reporting entity’s returns.  IFRS 

10 is effective for annual period beginning on or after January 1, 2013.  Earlier 

adoption is permitted. 

 

IFRS 11, “Joint Arrangements”: 
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IFRS 11 is a new standard which focuses on classifying joint arrangements by 

their rights and obligations rather than their legal form.  Entities are classified into 

two groups:  parties having rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities of 

an arrangement, and rights to the net assets of an arrangement.  Entities in the 

former case account for assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses in accordance 

with the arrangement, whereas entities in the later case account for the 

arrangement using the equity method.  IFRS 11 is effective for annual periods 

beginning on or after January 1, 2013.  Earlier application is permitted. 

 

(b) Accounting policies that management has initially adopted during the 

most recently completed financial year,  

 
Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires 

management to make certain estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the 

reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements 

and the reported revenues and expenses during the period.  

Although management uses historical experience and its best knowledge of the 

amount, events or actions to form the basis for judgments and estimates, actual 

results may differ from these estimates. 

The most significant accounts that require estimates as the basis for determining 

the stated amounts include the recoverability of receivables, valuation of 

investments, valuation of share-based payments, and the valuation allowance for 

deferred income tax assets. 

Impairment 

At the end of each reporting period, the Company’s assets are reviewed to 

determine whether there is any indication that those assets may be impaired.  If 

such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to 

determine the extent of the impairment, if any.  The recoverable amount is the 

higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use.  Fair value is determined as 

the amount that would be obtained from the sale of the asset in an arm’s length 

transaction between knowledgeable and willing parties.  In assessing value in use, 

the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-

tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 

money and the risks specific to the asset.  If the recoverable amount of an asset is 

estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is 

reduced to its recoverable amount and the impairment loss is recognized in the 

profit or loss for the period.  For an asset that does not generate largely 
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independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash 

generating unit to which the asset belongs.  

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset 

(or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable 

amount, but to an amount that does not exceed the carrying amount that would 

have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or 

cash-generating unit) in prior years.  A reversal of an impairment loss is 

recognized immediately in profit or loss. 

Financial instruments 
 
Financial assets 

Financial assets are initially recognized at fair value and are classified into one of 

the following categories, depending on the purpose for which the asset was 

acquired. 

Fair value through profit or loss – derivatives or assets acquired or incurred 

principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term.  They are 

carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with changes in fair 

value recognized in the statement of operations. 

Loans and receivables - non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 

payments that are not quoted in an active market.  They are carried at cost less 

any provision for impairment.  Individually significant receivables are considered 

for impairment when they are past due or when other objective evidence is 

received that a specific counterparty will default. 

Held-to-maturity investments - non-derivative financial assets with fixed or 

determinable payments and fixed maturities that the Company's management has 

the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.  These assets are measured at 

amortized cost using the effective interest method.  If there is objective evidence 

that the investment is impaired, determined by reference to external credit ratings 

and other relevant indicators, the financial asset is measured at the present value 

of estimated future cash flows.  Any changes to the carrying amount of the 

investment, including impairment losses, are recognized in the statement of 

operations. 

Available-for-sale – non-derivative financial assets not included in the above 

categories are classified as available-for- sale.  They are carried at fair value with 

changes in fair value recognized directly in equity.  Where a decline in the fair 

value of an available-for-sale financial asset constitutes objective evidence of 
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impairment, the amount of the loss is removed from equity and recognized in the 

statement of operations. 

All financial assets except for those at fair value through profit or loss are subject 

to review for impairment at the minimum of at each reporting date.  Financial 

assets are impaired when there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a 

group of financial assets is impaired.  Different criteria to determine impairment 

are applied for each category of financial assets described above. 

Financial liabilities 

The Company classifies its financial liabilities into one of two categories: 

Fair value through profit or loss - derivatives or liabilities acquired or incurred 

principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term.  They are 

carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with changes in fair 

value recognized in the statement of operations. 

Other financial liabilities - includes promissory notes, amounts due to related 

parties and payables and accruals, all of which are recognized at amortized cost. 

Classification of Financial Instruments 

The Company has classified its cash as fair value through profit or loss; cash 

equivalents and deposit as held-to-maturity; receivables as loans and receivables; 

and payables and accruals as other financial liabilities. 

Shared-based payments 

The Company applies the fair value method of accounting for stock option awards 

using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.  Under this method, the Company 

recognizes compensation expense for employee stock option awards, based on the 

grant date fair value, for each vesting installment, over the vesting period of the 

options.  Each installment is valued separately, based on assumptions determined 

from historical data, and recognized as compensation expense over each 

installment’s individual tranche vesting period.  Forfeiture estimates are 

recognized in the period they are estimated, and are revised for actual forfeitures 

in subsequent periods. 

In situations where stock option awards are issued to non-employees and some or 

all of the goods or services received by the entity as consideration cannot be 

specifically identified, they are measured at fair value of the share-based payment.  

Otherwise, share-based payments are measured at the fair value of goods or 

services received. 

Income taxes 
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Income tax is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to 

items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in equity.  

Current tax expense is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the 

year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at period end, adjusted for 

amendments to tax payable with regards to previous years. 

Deferred tax is recorded using the statement of financial position liability method, 

providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 

liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation 

purposes.  The following temporary differences are not provided for: goodwill not 

deductible for tax purposes; the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect 

neither accounting nor taxable loss; and differences relating to investments in 

subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable 

future.  The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of 

realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax 

rates enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date. 

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future 

taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilized.  To the 

extent that the Company does not consider it probable that a future tax asset will 

be recovered, it provides a valuation allowance against that excess. 

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are 

recognized at the same time as the liability to pay the related dividend.  Deferred 

tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set 

off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income 

taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its 

current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. 

Loss per share 

The Company uses the treasury stock method to compute the dilutive effect of 

options, warrants and similar instruments.  Under this method the dilutive effect 

on loss per share is recognized on the use of proceeds that could be obtained upon 

exercise of options, warrants and similar instruments.  It assumes that the 

proceeds would be used to purchase common shares at the average market price 

during the year.  For the years presented, the dilutive effect has not been 

computed as it proved to be anti-dilutive. 

Basic loss per share has been calculated using the weighted average number of 

common shares outstanding during the period. 

Comprehensive income (loss) 
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Comprehensive income (loss) is the change in the Company’s net assets that 

results from transactions, events and circumstances from sources other than the 

Company’s shareholders and includes items that are not included in net profit.  

Other comprehensive income consists of changes to unrealized gain and losses on 

available-for-sale financial assets, changes to unrealized gains and losses on the 

effective portion of cash flow hedges and changes to foreign currency translation 

adjustments of self-sustaining foreign operations during the period.  

Comprehensive income measures net earnings for the period plus other 

comprehensive income.  Amounts reported as other comprehensive income are 

accumulated in a separate component of equity as Accumulated Other 

Comprehensive Income.  The Company has not had other comprehensive income 

since inception. 

Mineral exploration expenditures 

The Company’s accounting policy relating to mineral exploration expenditures is 

to expense all exploration expenditures when incurred. 

Significant costs related to property acquisitions are capitalized until the viability 

of the mineral interest is determined.  When it has been established that a mineral 

interest is commercially mineable and an economic analysis has been completed, 

the costs subsequently incurred to develop a mine on the property prior to the start 

of mining operations are capitalized and will be amortized against production 

following commencement of commercial production, or written off if the property 

is sold, allowed to lapse or abandoned. 

Segment reporting 

A reportable segment, as defined by 'IFRS 8 Operating Segments', is a 

distinguishable business or geographical component of the Company, which are 

subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments.  The 

Company considers its primary reporting format to be business segments. The 

Company considers that it has only one reportable segment, being the mineral 

exploration segment. 

 

6.14 Financial Instruments and Other Instruments - For financial instruments and other 

instruments: 

 

As at March 31, 2012, the Company’s financial instruments consists of cash and 

cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, 

and amounts due to related parties. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at fair 

value using a level 1 fair value measurement.  The carrying value of accounts 

receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate their fair value 

because of their nature and respective maturity dates or durations. 
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Unless otherwise noted, it is management’s option that the Company is not 

exposed to significant credit, liquidity or market risks arising from these financial 

instruments.  The fair value of these financial instruments approximates their 

carrying value, unless otherwise noted. 

 

Interim MD&A 

This management discussion and analysis (“MD&A”) is dated as of August 28, 

2012 and should be read in conjunction with the unaudited financial statements of 

the Company for three months period ended June 30, 2012 and the full MD&A 

available at www.sedar.com. 

Our discussion in this MD&A is based on the Unaudited Financial Statements. 

The Unaudited Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with International 

Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). Unless expressly stated otherwise, all 

financial information is presented in Canadian dollars. 

All statements other than statements of historical fact in this MD&A are forward-

looking statements. These statements represent the Company’s intentions, plans, 

expectations and beliefs as of the date hereof, and are subject to risks, 

uncertainties and other factors of which many are beyond the control of the 

Company. These factors could cause actual results to differ materially from such 

forward-looking statements. Readers should not place undue reliance on these 

forward-looking statements. The section of Future Cash Requirements and Risks 

and Uncertainties below states specific risks, in particular the Company’s need to 

raise further funds to meet the minimum expenditure terms of its main property 

option agreements. That represents the most significant overall risk as the main 

asset of the company could be forfeited if not otherwise kept in good standing by 

meeting exploration requirements or otherwise extending terms to maintain the 

agreement. The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly revise these 

forward-looking statements to reflect subsequent events or circumstances.  

Significant Accounting Policies 

No new accounting policies have been introduced or any changes to this 

description in the annual MD&A. 

SELECTED QUARTERLY INFORMATION 

 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

 

 

  

 

Three Months 

ended 

 

 

Three 

Months 

Three months 

ended 

December 31, 

2011 

From April 7, 

2011 

date of 

Incorporation 
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June 30, 2012 

$ 

March 31, 

2012 

$ 

$ to 

September 30 

2011 

$ 

Expenses     

 Administrative Costs 18 426 243 - 

 Consulting fees - 2425 3,798 7,352 
 Legal Fees 4,277 16,161 8,622 - 
 Management fees - 9,450 8,316 10,584 

 
Mining Property 

Expenses 
19,108 

15,496 
13,120 

- 

 
Regulatory and 

transfer agent fees 
572 

1,264 
2,144 

4,713 

 Net Loss and     

 Comprehensive Loss (23,975) (45,222) (36,243) (22,649) 

For the period from April 7, 2011 to August 25, 2011, the Company was a 

wholly-owned subsidiary of Tulox. The Company commenced its status as a 

reporting issuer on August 25, 2011 there were no field operations the period 

ended June 30, 2012 mining property expense was fees to the BC Mining 

Recorder Office to maintain the Tulox claims in good standing. All expenses 

during the period were a result of maintaining the Tulox property in good 

standing and administrative costs resulting from the funding and organizing the 

company as a reporting issuer. Geological consulting expenses consisted of 

preparation of an initial preparatory work phase to re-establish soil sample grids 

and ground magnetic and electromagnetic surveys to confirm drill targets 

prepared by Andrew Ganton G.I.T. subsequent to the period an updated 43-101 

report was prepared by Wesley Raven P. Geo dated April 13, 2012. 

Subsequent to the period a finders agreement was entered into with a registered  

Investment dealer to raise $55,000 for the Company prior to listing by issuance of 

1,100,000 shares at $.05 per share in consideration for a 10% cash commission 

and 110,000 share purchase warrants exercisable for 24 months from the date the 

Company shares are listed on CNSX at a price of $.15 per share. 

 

6.17 Additional Disclosure for Issuers without Significant Revenue: 

 

Additional Disclosure for Venture issuers without Significant Revenue 

Annual 

Consulting Fees include $6,359 for contract bookkeeping and accounting costs to 

contractors to maintain the company accounting and reporting system. 
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Management fees of $28,350 are to related parties as described in the section 

below Related Parties, in respect of accrued management fees. Fees accrued to 

March 31, 2012 were to 3 Directors, no further fees are being accrued as of March 

31, 2012. The balance of fees owing are $13,998 which is net of amounts settled 

as shares for debt. 

Mining Property expense includes payments made to Amarc for BC mining 

recorder costs to maintain the claims in good standing for $3,745 and most of the 

balance is payment in shares under the option agreement. 
Quarter Ended June 30, 2012 

Management fees of $NIL versus 9,450 the quarter ended March 31, 2012 are to 

related parties as described in the section below Related Parties, in respect of 

accrued management fees. Fees accrued to June 30, 2012 were to 3 Directors, no 

further fees are being accrued as of March 31, 2012.  

Mining Property expense includes payments made to Amarc for BC Mining 

recorder costs to maintain the claims in good standing for $19,108 versus  

$15,496 the previous quarter ended March 31, 2012. 

 

6.18 Description of Securities: 

The total number of common shares outstanding as at June 30, 2012 was 

11,671,991.  A subsequent private placement of 1,460,000 shares closed 

September 26, 2012 for 1,460,000 shares at a price of $.05 per shares such that 

the total number of common shares outstanding as of the date of this application is 

13,131,991.  

As at the date of this report, there were 366,000 share purchase warrants 

outstanding, exercisable into 366,000 common shares at $0.15 per share, 

exercisable for 24 months from the date the Company’s shares are listed for 

trading on CNSX at a price of $.15 per share. 

 

As of the date of this application there were no stock options outstanding.  

6.19 Provide Breakdown: 

(a) The Issuer has not had significant revenue from operations in either of its 

last two financial years, the material components of: 

(i) capitalized or expensed exploration and development costs, 

(ii) expensed research and development costs, 

(iii) deferred development costs, 

(iv) general and administrative expenses, and 

(v) any material costs, whether capitalized, deferred or expensed, not 

referred to in paragraphs (i) through (iv); 

has been disclosed in the financial statements. 



 

 
FORM 2A – LISTING STATEMENT 

July 6, 2010 
Page 33 

 
  

No deferred exploration or research and development expense has been incurred. 

 

6.20 Negative cash-flow - The Issuer had negative operating cash flow in its most 

recently completed financial year for which financial statements have been 

included: 

 

The period of time the proceeds raised are expected to fund operations is one year 

if no further funds are raised. 

 

The estimated total operating costs necessary for the Issuer to achieve its stated 

business objectives during that period of time is about $100,000 

 

The estimated amount of other material capital expenditures during that period of 

time is $45,000 if no further funds are raised, and at least $225,000 on raising 

sufficient funds. 

 

6.21 The Issuer has no significant equity investment. 

 

7. Market for Securities 
 

There is currently no market on which the securities are listed. 

 

8. Consolidated Capitalization 
 

8.1 There has been no material change in, the share and loan capital of the Issuer, since the 

date of the comparative financial statements for the Issuer's most recently completed 

financial year contained in the Listing Statement. 

 

9. Options to Purchase Securities 
 

In April 2011, the directors of Newlox established the Newlox Stock Option Plan as a rolling 

stock option plan in accordance with the policies of the Exchange. The maximum number of 

Newlox Shares reserved for issuance under the Newlox Stock Option Plan is ten (10%) percent 

of the issued and outstanding Newlox Shares on a "rolling" basis. 

 

No options have been granted or issued under the plan. 

 

 

10. Description of the Securities 
 

 

Newlox is authorized to issue an unlimited number of common shares and there are 13,131,991  

common shares issued.  There are no special rights and restrictions attached to the common 

shares of Newlox. 
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10.2 No Debt securities are being listed. 

 

10.4 No Other securities are being listed. 

 

10.5 Not Applicable. 

10.6 Not Applicable 
 

10.7 Prior Sales 

 

Date of Issuance 

Type of 

Security 

Issued 

Number of 

Securities Issued 

Price per 

Security 

Total Funds 

Received 

Shares issued per 

Option Agreement 

– October 2011 

Common 

shares 

250,000 $.02 $5,000(1) 

Private Placement 

– November 2011 

Common 

shares 

2,500,000 $.05 $125,000 

Private Placement 

– February 2012 

Common 

shares 

500,000 $.05 $25,000 

Debt Settlement 

for Shares – 

February 2012 

Common 

shares 

396,000 $.05 $19,800 

Shares issued per 

Option Agreement 

– February 2012 

Common 

shares 

225,000 $.05 $11,250(1) 

Private Placement 

– September 2012 

Common 

shares 

1,460,000 $.05 $73,000 

 
(1)Deemed value for property payment. 

 

10.8 Stock Exchange Price: 

 The Issuers shares have not traded on any stock exchange 

 

11. Escrowed Securities 
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11.1 State as of a specified date within 30 days before the date of the Listing Statement, in 

substantially the following tabular form, the number of securities of each class of 

securities of the Issuer held, to the knowledge of the Issuer, in escrow (which, for the 

purposes of this Form includes any securities subject to a pooling agreement) and the 

percentage that number represents of the outstanding securities of that class. In a note to 

the table, disclose the name of the depository, if any, and the date of and conditions 

governing the release of the securities from escrow. 

 

 

 ESCROWED SECURITIES 
 

Designation of class held in 

escrow 

 

 Number of securities 

 held in escrow 

Percentage of 

class 

Common Shares 

 

2,601,736 

 

19.81% 

 

 

 

12. Principal Shareholders  
 

As of the date of this Listing Statement, to best of the knowledge of the New Issuer, the 

only persons who beneficially own on a fully diluted basis, directly or indirectly or 

exercise control or direction over, more than 10% of the voting rights attached to all of 

the outstanding shares of the New Issuer are as follows: 

 

Name and 

Municipality of 

Residence of Security 

holder 

Designation of 

Class 

Number of 

Common Shares 

and Share Options 

Percentage of 

Common Shares 

Beneficially Owned 

Donald Gordon,  

North Vancouver 

Common 2,005,736 15.27% 

 

13 Directors and Officers 
 

As of the date of this Listing Statement, the Board of Directors of the New Issuer is 

comprised of Donald Gordon, James Miller - Tait and Patrick Lavin. 

 

The name, municipality of residence, position held with New Issuer, principal occupation 

during the last five years and the security holdings of New Issuer of each of the proposed 

directors and officers of New Issuer are as follows: 
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Name and 

Municipality of 

Residence 

Position with The 

Issuer 

Principal Occupation of the Last 

Five Years (1) 

Date 

Elected as 

Director 

Share-

holding of  

The Issuer(5) 

     

Donald Gordon 
(2),(3) 

Vancouver, 

British Columbia 

Chief Executive 

Officer  and Chief 

Financial Officer 

Principal of DAG Consulting Corp. 

since 2000; Senior Advisor, 

Canadian National Stock Exchange 

since 2005; Director of  

April 7, 

2011 

2,005,736 

Direct 

15.27% 

Thomas Bell (2) 

White Rock, 

British Columbia 

Director Director and CEO of AFG 

Flameguard since October 2011; 

President and CEO of Katabatic 

Power Corp. since October 2009; 

Executive VP, Corporate 

Development of Great Canadian 

Gaming Corp. from 1993 to 2009. 

September 

8, 2011 

476,000 

Direct 

3.6% 

James Miller-Tait 
(2)

 

North 

Vancouver 

Director Currently Exploration Manager 

Imperial Metals Corporation , 

Director of Prosper Gold Corp., 

Bard Ventures Ltd. and Beatrix 

Ventures Inc. 

July 31, 

2012 

120,000 

1.0% 

Notes: 
(1) The information as to principal occupation, business or employment, penalties, sanctions, cease trade orders, bankruptcies, The 

Issuer shares beneficially owned or controlled is not within the knowledge of the management of The Issuer and has been 

furnished by the respective nominees.  Each nominee has held the same or a similar principal occupation with the organization 

indicated or a predecessor thereof for the last five years. 
(2) Member of the Audit Committee. 
(3) Mr. Gordon is a director of Tomco Developments Inc. which was subject to a cease trade order issued by the British Columbia 

Securities Commission on October 12, 2005, for failure to file required financial information in the prescribed time.  The cease 
trade order was revoked on January 13, 2006.  Tomco Developments Inc. was cease traded October 7, 2008 by the British 

Columbia Securities Commission and January 5, 2009 by the Alberta Securities Commission for failure to file the audited 

financial statements for the year ended May 31, 2008 and remains under the cease trade order as of the date of this Listing 
Statement. 

 

The term of office of all directors will expire at the next annual meeting of the shareholders of 

the Issuer, subject to re-election at that time.  The officers and directors of the New Issuer, as a 

group, will hold, directly or indirectly, or have control over an aggregate of 2,601,736 of the 

issued shares or 20.37% of the outstanding shares.. 

 

The following disclosure contains the profiles of the directors and officers and other members of 

management of the New Issuer: 

 

Donald Gordon 

CEO and CFO 

 

Since 1999, through his operating company, DAG Consulting Corp, Mr. Gordon assists issuers 

in structuring going public transactions and liaison with Investment Dealers.  Currently, Mr. 

Gordon is Senior Advisor to the Canadian National Stock Exchange, performing business 

development duties in the Vancouver office. Previously, Mr. Gordon held management positions 

in corporate finance and marketing over a 17 year career with the Vancouver Stock Exchange 

(now TSX Venture Exchange).  Mr. Gordon is a past President and board member of the 

Vancouver Society of Financial Analysts.  Mr. Gordon holds BA and MBA degrees from the 
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University of British Columbia and is a CFA charter holder.  Mr. Gordon is 57 years old and will 

devote up to 25% of his time to the Issuer.  He is an independent contractor. 

 

Thomas Bell 

Director 

 

Mr. Bell is President and CEO of AFG Flameguard Ltd. and Katabatic Power Corp.  Mr. Bell 

has extensive executive, business, operational and regulatory experience that he gained in the 

position of Executive Vice President, Corporate Development at Great Canadian Gaming 

Corporation, a TSX listed company, from 1993 to 2009.  Mr. Bell has broad public company, 

corporate finance and operational expertise and has served as an officer and director of numerous 

public and private companies in the gaming, financial services, mining exploration and 

renewable energy industries.  Mr. Bell is 43 years old and will devote up to 15% of his time to 

the Issuer.  He is an independent contractor. 

 

Jim Miller-Tait 

Director 

 

Jim Miller-Tait graduated from the University of British Columbia in 1986 with a BSc Geology, 

acquired his P. Geo. in 1992, and has over 20 years of continuous exploration, development and 

production experience. He has been President of Sikanni Mine Development Ltd., his own 

Geological Consulting Company, as Consulting Geologist since May of 1996; and has worked 

extensively in all areas of North America, Bolivia, Mexico and Europe. He currently is the 

exploration manager at Imperial Metals Corporation and previously was an exploration manager 

at Selkirk Minerals. While being a director of three other mineral exploration companies, Jim’s 

experience includes serving in various capacities with a number of public companies conducting 

field operations, preparing reports as a qualified person and carrying out executive level duties. 

Mr. Miller-Tait is 47 years old and will devote up to 15% of his time to the Issuer. 

 

Corporate Cease Trade Orders 

 

Except as disclosed in note 3 of the table describing the directors and officers of the Issuer, to the 

management’s knowledge, no director, officer, promoter or other member of management of the 

Issuer is, or within the ten years prior to the date of this Listing Statement has been, a director, 

officer, promoter or other member of management of any other issuer that, while that person was 

acting in the capacity of a director, officer, promoter or other member of management of that 

issuer, was the subject of a cease trade order or similar order or an order that denied the issuer 

access to any statutory exemptions for a period of more than thirty consecutive days. 

 

Penalties or Sanctions 

 

Except as disclosed in note 3 of the table describing the directors and officers of the Issuer, to the 

management's knowledge, no director or officer of the New Issuer, or a shareholder holding 

sufficient securities of the Issuer to effect materially the control of the Issuer, has been subject to 

any penalties or sanctions imposed by a court relating to Canadian securities legislation or by a 

Canadian securities regulatory authority or has entered into a settlement agreement with a 
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Canadian securities regulatory authority relating to trading in securities, promotion or 

management of a publicly traded issuer for theft or fraud, or has been subject to any other 

penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or a regulatory body that would be likely to be 

considered important to a reasonable investor making an investment decision. 

 

Bankruptcy 

 

To the management’s knowledge, no director, officer or promoter of the Issuer has, within the 10 

years before the date of this Listing Statement, become bankrupt, made a proposal under any 

legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency, or become subject to or instituted any 

proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors, or had a receiver, receiver-manager or 

trustee appointed to hold its assets. 

 

Conflict of Interest 

 

Certain of the Issuer's directors and officers are associated with other companies or entities, 

which may give rise to conflicts of interest.  In accordance with the Canada Business 

Corporations Act, directors who have a material interest in any person who is a party to a 

material contract or proposed material contract with the Issuer are required, subject to certain 

exceptions, to disclose that interest and abstain from voting on any resolution to approve that 

contract.  In addition, the directors are required to act honestly and in good faith with a view to 

the Issuer's best interests. 

 

Other Reporting Issuer Experience 

 

The following table sets out information for each director or officer of the Issuer who is or, 

within the five years prior to the date of the Listing Statement, has been a director or officer of 

any other reporting issuer. 

 

Name of  

Director or Officer 

Name and Jurisdiction 

of Reporting Issuer 

Name of Trading 

Market 

Position - From and 

To 

Donald Gordon 

 

AFG Flameguard Ltd. 

(formerly Orca Power 

Corp. formerly Creation 

Casinos Inc.) 

CNSX Director since April 

2004 

Abbastar Resources 

Corp. 

TSX Venture President since 2010 

Director since June 

2007 

Tulox Resources Inc. CNSX Director from May 

2007 to August 2011 

Manuweb Software 

Systems Inc. 

CNSX Director from June 

2010 to April 2011 

Tomco Developments N/A Director since 
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Name of  

Director or Officer 

Name and Jurisdiction 

of Reporting Issuer 

Name of Trading 

Market 

Position - From and 

To 

Inc. December 2003 

Organic Potash Corp. CNSX  Director since 

August 2011 

Whitewater Resources 

Ltd. 

N/A President, Director 

since November 

2010 

Canadian Data Preserve CNSX Director from June 

2010 to July 2012 

0922519 B.C. Ltd. N/A Director From 

October 2011 to 

September 2012 

0922518 B.C. Ltd. N/A Director since 

October 2011 

Avatar Ocean 

Technology Inc. 

N/A Director since 

October 2011 

ARA Safety Inc. N/A Director January 

2008 to October 

2008 

Thomas Bell 

 

 

AFG Flameguard Ltd. 

(Previously Orca Power) 

CNSX Director since 

October 2011 

Great Canadian Gaming 

Corp. 

TSX Executive VP from  

2006 to 2009 

Acero-Martin 

Exploration 

TSX Venture Director from 2005 

to 2007 

Abbastar Resources 

Corp. 

TSX Venture Director from 2007  

to 2009 and from 

2010 to present 

Orca Power Corp. CNSX Director and Chair 

from 2003 to 2007 

and  Director from 

August 2011 to 

October 2011 

NU2U Resources Corp. N/A Director, President 

since August 2011 

Orca Wind Power Corp. N/A Director from 
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Name of  

Director or Officer 

Name and Jurisdiction 

of Reporting Issuer 

Name of Trading 

Market 

Position - From and 

To 

November 2011 to 

October 2011 

Jim Miller-Tait 

 

 

 

Prosper Gold Corp. 

(formerly Lander Energy 

Corporation) 

TSX Venture Director since April 

2012 

Bard Ventures Ltd. TSX Venture Director since 

January 2007 

BeatrixVentures Inc. TSX Venture Director since March 

2010 

Selkirk Metals Corp 

(now Imperial Metals 

Corporation TSX) 

TSX Venture Director from August 

2005 to November 

2011 

 

14. Capitalization 

 

14.1 Prepare and file the following chart for each class of securities to be listed:  

 

Issued Capital 

 
Number of 

Securities 

(non-diluted) 

Number of 

Securities 

(fully-

diluted) 

%of 

Issued 

(non-

diluted) 

% of 

Issued  

(fully diluted) 

Public Float 

 

    

Total outstanding (A)  13,131,991 13,497,991 
  

     
Held by Related Persons or 

employees of the Issuer or 

Related Person of the Issuer, or 

by persons or companies who 

beneficially own or control, 

directly or indirectly, more 

than a 5% voting position in 

the Issuer (or who would 

beneficially own or control, 

directly or indirectly, more 

than a 5% voting position in 

the Issuer upon exercise or 

conversion of other securities 

2,601,736 

 

2,601,736 

 

19.81% 19.27% 
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held) (B) 

     

Total Public Float (A-B) 10,530,255 10,896,255 80.18% 80.72% 

  
   

Freely-Tradeable Float 

 

    

Number of outstanding 

securities subject to resale 

restrictions, including 

restrictions imposed by 

pooling or other 

arrangements or in a 

shareholder agreement and 

securities held by control 

block holders (C)  

2,601,736 

 

2,601,736 

 

19.81% 19.27% 

     

Total Tradeable Float (A-C) 10,530,255 10,896,255 80.18% 80.72% 
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Public Securityholders (Registered) 

 

Instruction: For the purposes of this report, "public securityholders" are persons other 

than persons enumerated in section (B) of the previous chart. List registered holders only. 

 

Class of Security 

 

    

Size of Holding  
 

Number of holders 
 

Total number of securities 

     

1 – 99 securities 
 

0 
 

0 

     

100 – 499 securities 
 

0 
 

0 

     

500 – 999 securities 
 

0 
 

0 

     

1,000 – 1,999 securities 
 

3 
 

3,000 

     

2,000 – 2,999 securities 
 

0 
 

0 

     

3,000 – 3,999 securities 
 

2 
 

7,000 

     

4,000 – 4,999 securities 
 

0 
 

0 

     

5,000 or more  securities 
 

28 
 

1,677,084 
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Public Securityholders (Beneficial) 

 

Instruction: Include (i) beneficial holders holding securities in their own name as 

registered shareholders; and (ii) beneficial holders holding securities through an 

intermediary where the Issuer has been given written confirmation of shareholdings. For 

the purposes of this section, it is sufficient if the intermediary provides a breakdown by 

number of beneficial holders for each line item below; names and holdings of specific 

beneficial holders do not have to be disclosed. If an intermediary or intermediaries will 

not provide details of beneficial holders, give the aggregate position of all such 

intermediaries in the last line. 

 

Class of Security 

 

    

Size of Holding  
 

Number of holders 
 

Total number of securities 

1 – 99 securities 
 

0 
 

0 

     

100 – 499 securities 
 

1 
 

250 

     

500 – 999 securities 
 

69 
 

38,250 

     

1,000 – 1,999 securities 
 

40 
 

45,250 

     

2,000 – 2,999 securities 
 

11 
 

26,250 

     

3,000 – 3,999 securities 
 

4 
 

13,500 

     

4,000 – 4,999 securities 
 

3 
 

12,750 

5,000 or more  securities 
 

110 
 

10,394,005 

Unable to confirm 
 N/A   
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Non-Public Securityholders (Registered) 

 

Instruction: For the purposes of this report, "non-public securityholders" are persons 

enumerated in section (B) of the issued capital  chart.  

 

Class of Security 

 

    

Size of Holding  
 

Number of holders 
 

Total number of securities 

     

1 – 99 securities 
    

     

100 – 499 securities 
   

 

     

500 – 999 securities 
    

     

1,000 – 1,999 securities 
    

     

2,000 – 2,999 securities 
    

     

3,000 – 3,999 securities 
    

     

4,000 – 4,999 securities 
    

     

5,000 or more  securities 
 

3 
 

2,601,736 
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14.2 Provide the following details for any securities convertible or exchangeable into any 

class of listed securities 

 

Description of Security (include 

conversion /  exercise terms, including 

conversion / exercise price) 

Number of 

convertible / 

exchangeable 

securities outstanding 

Number of listed securities 

issuable upon conversion / 

exercise 

366,000 Warrants exercisable into 

common shares at $0.15 per share, 

expiring 24 months from the date the 

common shares are listed on CNSX  

366,000 366,000 

 

14.3 There are no listed securities reserved for issuance that are not included in section 14.2. 

 

15. Executive Compensation 
 

Compensation Discussion and Analysis 

 

The Issuer relies on the board of directors in determining executive compensation and option 

based awards to executive officers. 

 

Donald Gordon, Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer was a “named executive officer” of 

the Issuer and Jim Miller-Tait and Thomas Bell are directors of the Issuer for the purposes of the 

following disclosure.  The compensation paid to the NEO and to the directors in the most recent 

financial year-end to March 31, 2012 is as set out in the Summary Compensation Table. 

 

The board of directors approves option based awards to executive officers.  Previous grants of 

option-based awards are taken into account when considering new grants however no options 

have been granted or proposed to be granted as of the date of this application. 

 

Summary Compensation Table 

 

The following table reflects compensation of each NEO and the directors of the Issuer since its 

incorporation to the end of its most recently completed financial year; the period ended March 

31, 2012. 

 

Name and principal 

position Year 

Salary 

($) 

Share 

based 

awards 

($) 

Option 

based 

awards 

($) 

Non-Equity 

Incentive Plan 

compensation 

Pension 

value 

($) 

All 

other 

compen

-sation 

($) 

Total 

compen

-sation 

($) 

Annual 
Incentive 

Plans 

Long 

term 
Incentive 

Plans 
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Donald Gordon, 

President, CEO and 

CFO  

2012 8,568  Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 8,568  

Thomas Bell, Director 2012 23,184 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 23,184 

Jim Miller-Tait, 

Director 

2012 7,056 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 7,056 

 

Incentive Plan Awards 

 

The following table provides for each NEO and director for all awards outstanding since the 

incorporation of Newlox. 

 

Name 

Option – based 

awards 

Value vested during 

the year ($) 

Share – based 

awards 

Value vested during 

the year ($) 

Non-Equity 

Incentive Plan 

compensation 

Value earned 

during the year ($) 

Donald Gordon, 

President, CEO and CFO 

Nil Nil Nil 

Thomas Bell, Director Nil Nil Nil 

Jim Miller-Tait Nil Nil Nil 
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Pension Plan Benefits 

 

The Issuer does not provide any pension plan benefits to its executive officers, directors or 

employees. 

 

Termination and Change of Control Benefits 

 

There are no written employment contracts between the Issuer and NEOs.  There are no 

compensatory plan(s) or arrangements(s), with respect to the NEOs resulting from the 

resignation, retirement or any other termination of employment of the officer’s employment or 

from a change of NEOs’ responsibilities following a change in control.  The Issuer has no 

change of control benefits.  In case of termination of NEOs common law and statutory law 

applies. 

 

There are no other arrangements from those disclosed above under which directors were 

compensated by the Issuer during the most recently completed financial year for their services in 

their capacity as directors or consultants. 

 

16. Indebtedness of Directors and Executive Officers 
 

16.1 Aggregate Indebtedness 

 

None of the executive officers or directors of the Issuer, or associates or affiliates of such 

persons:  

 

a) are indebted to the Issuer or a subsidiary of the Issuer; or 

b) are or were indebted to another entity at any time where that indebtedness was the subject 

of a guarantee, support agreement, letter of credit or other similar arrangement or 

understanding provided by the Issuer or a subsidiary of the Issuer. 

 

17.  Risk Factors 
 

17.1 The common shares of the Issuer should be considered highly speculative due to the 

nature of the Issuer’s business and the present stage of its development. In evaluating 

the Issuer and its business, investors should carefully consider, in addition to the other 

information contained in this Listing Statement, the following risk factors. These risk 

factors are not a definitive list of all risk factors associated with an investment in the 

Issuer or in connection with the Issuer’s operations. There may be other risks and 

uncertainties that are not known to the Issuer or that the Issuer currently believes are 

not material, but which also may have a material adverse effect on its business, 

financial condition, operating results or prospects. In that case, the trading price of the 

common shares could decline substantially, and investors may lose all or part of the 

value of the common shares held by them.  



 

 
FORM 2A – LISTING STATEMENT 

July 6, 2010 
Page 48 

 
  

 No Ongoing Operations and No Production History 

 As the Issuer is a mineral exploration company and has no operations or revenue, there 

are no ongoing operations and no production history.  

 Absence of Prior Public Market 

 There has been no prior public market for the common shares, and an active trading 

market may not develop or, if it does develop, may not be sustained. The lack of an 

active market may impair shareholders’ ability to sell their shares at the time they wish 

to sell them or at a price that they consider reasonable. The lack of an active market 

may also reduce the fair market value and increase the volatility of the shares. An 

inactive market may also impair the Issuer’s ability to raise capital by selling shares 

and to acquire other exploration properties or interests by using its shares as 

consideration.   

 Limited Operating History 

The Issuer has no history of earnings.  There are no known commercial quantities of 

mineral reserves on the Issuer’s properties.  There is no assurance that the Issuer will 

ever discover any economic quantities of mineral reserves. 

Requirement for Further Financing 

The Issuer may need to raise additional funds to carry out production of its properties. 

There is no assurance the Issuer will be able to raise additional funds or will be able to 

raise additional funds on terms acceptable to the Issuer. If the Issuer’s exploration 

programs are successful and favorable exploration results are obtained, the properties 

may be developed into commercial production. The Issuer may require additional funds 

to place the properties into production. The only sources of future funds presently 

available to the Issuer are the sale of equity capital, debt or offering of interests in its 

properties to be earned by another party or parties by carrying out development work. 

There is no assurance that any such funds will be available to the Issuer or be available 

on terms acceptable to the Issuer. If funds are available, there is no assurance that such 

funds will be sufficient to bring the properties to commercial production. Failure to 

obtain additional financing on a timely basis could have a material adverse effect on the 

Issuer, and could cause the Issuer to forfeit its interest in its properties and reduce or 

terminate its operations.  

Exploration  

At present, there are no bodies of ore, known or inferred, on the properties and there are 

no known bodies of commercially recoverable ore on the properties. There is no 

assurance that the Issuer’s mineral exploration activities will result in any discoveries 

of commercial bodies of ore on the properties.  
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Development 

The business of exploration for precious metals involves a high degree of risk. Few 

exploration properties are ultimately developed into producing properties. The Issuer’s 

properties are at the exploration stage.  

Title to Properties 

Acquisition of title to mineral properties is a very detailed and time-consuming process.  

Title to, and the area of, mineral properties may be disputed.  Although the Issuer has 

investigated its title to the properties for which it holds an option to acquire concessions 

or other mineral leases or licenses and the Issuer is satisfied with its review of the title 

to the properties, the Issuer cannot give an assurance that title to the properties will not 

be challenged or impugned.  Mineral properties sometimes contain claims or transfer 

histories that examiners cannot verify, and transfers under foreign law often are 

complex. A successful claim that the Issuer does not have title could cause the Issuer to 

lose its rights to the properties, perhaps without compensation for its prior expenditures 

relating to the properties. 

The Issuer’s properties may now or in the future be the subject of first nations land 

claims.  The legal nature of aboriginal land claims is a matter of considerable 

complexity.  The impact of any such claim on the Issuer's ownership interest in the 

properties cannot be predicted with any degree of certainty and no assurance can be 

given that a broad recognition of aboriginal rights in the areas in which the properties 

are located, by way of a negotiated settlement or judicial pronouncement, would not 

have an adverse effect on the Issuer's activities.  Even in the absence of such 

recognition, the Issuer may at some point be required to negotiate with first nations in 

order to facilitate exploration and development work on the properties. 

Because the Issuer’s interest in the properties is by way of an option agreement: (i) the 

Issuer does not own the properties, rather the Issuer has the right to acquire an interest 

in the properties by issuing common shares, incurring the expenditures and meeting the 

certain obligations; (ii) the exploration expenditures under the option agreements are 

optional to the Issuer, such that if the Issuer determines the properties to be without 

sufficient merit at any time prior to exercising its option it is not obligated to incur any 

further expenditures; (iii) if the Issuer fails to incur expenditures in accordance with the 

option agreements, it will lose all of its interest in the properties; (iv) the Issuer is 

dependent on the optionors to perform their obligations under the option agreements 

and if the optionors fail to perform their obligations thereunder the Issuer’s interest in 

the properties may be lost.  There is no guarantee the Issuer will be able to raise 

sufficient funding in the future to incur all expenditures under the option agreements. 

Management 

The success of the Issuer is largely dependent upon the performance of its management.  

The loss of the services of these persons may have a material adverse effect on the 
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Issuer's business and prospects.  There is no assurance that the Issuer can maintain the 

service of its management or other qualified personnel required to operate its business. 

Requirement for Permits and Licenses 

The Issuer will be applying for all necessary licenses and permits under applicable laws 

and regulations to carry on the exploration activities which it is currently planning in 

respect of the properties, and the Issuer believes it will comply in all material respects 

with the terms of such licenses and permits.  However, such licenses and permits are 

subject to changes in regulations and in various operational circumstances.  A 

substantial number of additional permits and licenses will be required should the Issuer 

proceed beyond exploration.  There can be no guarantee that the Issuer will be able to 

obtain such licenses and permits.  

Environmental Risks and other Regulatory Requirements 

The current or future operations of the Issuer, including the exploration activities and 

commencement of production on the properties, will require permits from various 

federal and local governmental authorities, and such operations are and will be 

governed by laws and regulations governing exploration, development, production, 

taxes, labor standards, occupational health, waste disposal, toxic substances, land use, 

environmental protection, site safety and other matters.  There can be no assurance that 

all permits which the Issuer may require for its facilities and conduct of exploration and 

development operations will be obtainable on reasonable terms or that such laws and 

regulations would not have an material adverse effect on any exploration and 

development project which the Issuer might undertake. 

Failure to comply with applicable laws, regulations and permitting requirements may 

result in enforcement actions including orders issued by regulatory or judicial 

authorities causing operations to cease or be curtailed and may include corrective 

measures requiring capital expenditures, installation of additional equipment or 

remedial actions.  Parties engaged in exploration and development operations may be 

required to compensate those suffering loss or damage by reason of the exploration and 

development activities and may have civil or criminal fines or penalties imposed upon 

them for violation of applicable laws or regulations. 

Amendments to current laws, regulations and permits governing the operations and 

activities of mineral companies, or more stringent enforcement thereof, could have a 

material adverse impact on the Issuer and cause increases in capital expenditure or 

exploration and development costs or reduction in levels of production at producing 

properties or require abandonment or delays in development of new properties. 

Uninsurable Risks 

 

Exploration of mineral properties involves numerous risks, including unexpected or 

unusual geological conditions, rock bursts, cave-ins, fires, floods, earthquakes and other 
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environmental occurrences, and political and social instability.  It is not always possible 

to obtain insurance against all such risks and the Issuer may decide not to insure against 

certain risks as a result of high premiums or other reasons.  Should such liabilities arise, 

they could reduce or eliminate any further profitability and result in increasing costs 

and a decline in the value of the securities of the Issuer.  The Issuer does not maintain 

insurance against environmental risks. 

 

Competition 

Significant and increasing competition exists for mineral opportunities in the 

jurisdictions in which the Issuer has mineral properties.  There are a number of large 

established mineral exploration companies with substantial capabilities and greater 

financial and technical resources than the Issuer.  The Issuer may be unable to acquire 

additional mineral properties or acquire such properties on terms it considers 

acceptable.  Accordingly, there can be no assurance that the Issuer's exploration 

programs will yield any reserves or result in any commercial mineral operations. 

 

Conflicts of Interest 

Directors of the Issuer may, from time to time, serve as directors of, or participate in 

ventures with other companies involved in natural resource development.  As a result, 

there may be situations that involve a conflict of interest for such directors.  Each 

director will attempt not only to avoid dealing with such other companies in situations 

where conflicts might arise but will also disclose all such conflicts in accordance with 

the Canada Business Corporations Act and will govern themselves in respect thereof to 

the best of their ability in accordance with the obligations imposed upon them by law. 

Litigation 

The Issuer and/or its directors may be subject to a variety of civil or other legal 

proceedings, with or without merit.  The Issuer does not know of any such pending or 

actual material legal proceedings as of the date of this Listing Statement. 

Volatility of Share Prices 

 Share prices are subject to changes because of numerous factors beyond the Issuer’s 

control, including reports of new information, changes in its financial situation, the 

sale of its shares in the market, its failure to achieve financial results in line with the 

expectations of analysis, or announcements by the Issuer or any of its competitors 

concerning results. There is no guarantee that the market price of the shares will be 

protected from any such fluctuations in the future.  

 In the past, companies have experienced volatility in their share value and have been 

the subject of securities class action litigation. The Issuer might become involved in 

securities class action litigation in the future. Such litigation often results in substantial 

costs and diversion of management’s attention and resources and could have a negative 

effect on the Issuer’s business and results of operation.  
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No Cash Dividends are Expected to be Paid in the Foreseeable Future.  

The Issuer has not declared any cash dividends to date.  The Issuer intends to retain any 

future earnings to finance its business operations and any future growth.  Therefore, the 

Issuer does not anticipate declaring any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. 

Ore Reserves and Reserve Estimates 

 

The Issuer’s business relies upon the ability to determine whether a given property has 

commercial quantities of recoverable minerals.  No assurance can be given that any 

discovered mineral reserves and resources will be recovered or that they will be 

recovered at the rates estimated.  Mineral reserve and resource estimates are based on 

limited sampling and, consequently, are uncertain because the samples may not be 

representative.  Mineral reserve and resource estimates may require revision (either up 

or down) based on actual production experience. 

17.2  There is no risk that security holders of the Issuer may become liable to make an 

additional contribution beyond the price of the security. 

 

18. Promoters  
 

As of the date of this Listing Statement, the Issuer has no promoters. 

 

19. Legal Proceedings 
 

The Issuer is not a party to or subject to any outstanding judgments, lawsuits, or proceedings and 

has no knowledge of any pending lawsuits or proceedings.  

 

20. Interest of Management and Others in Material Transactions 
 

20.1 None of the following persons or companies have an interest in any transaction from 

the date of incorporation to the date of the Listing Statement, or in any proposed 

transaction, that has materially affected or will materially affect the Issuer or a 

subsidiary of the Issuer: 

 

(a) any director or executive officer of the Issuer; 

 

(b) a person or company that is the direct or indirect beneficial owner of, or who 

exercises control or direction over, more than 10 percent of any class or series of 

your outstanding voting securities; and 

 

(c) an associate or affiliate of any of the persons or companies referred to in 

paragraphs (a) or (b). 
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21. Auditors, Transfer Agents and Registrars 
 

21.1 AUDITOR: Charlton & Company, Chartered Accountants 

Suite 1735, Two Bentall Centre 

535 Burrard Street Box 243 

Vancouver B.C., V7X 1M9 

 

21.2 Transfer AGENT: Computershare Trust Company 

 510 Burrard Street 

 3
rd

 Floor 

 Vancouver, BC, V6C 3B9   

 

22. Material Contracts 
 

22.1  

1.Pursuant to a Plan Arrangement Agreement dated April 8, 2011 the Issuer completed a 

corporate restructuring by way of a statutory plan of arrangement (the 

“Arrangement”) to transfer the interest of Tulox Resources Corp. in the Tulox 

Property and $5,000 cash to the Company (the “Transfer”) which were completed on 

July 7, 2011 and August 23, 2011 respectively. As consideration for the Transfer, the 

Company issued 7,800,911 common shares to shareholders of Tulox on August 25, 

2011. Tulox’s shareholders approved the Arrangement Agreement on May 30, 2011 

and by the Supreme Court of British Columbia on June 3, 2011. The Arrangement 

Agreement became effective on August 11, 2011. As a result, the Transfer was 

executed and the Company issued the Arrangement Shares to shareholders of Tulox 

as of August 25, 2011. 

 

2.Pursuant to an Option Agreement dated December 15, 2011 with Amarc Resources Ltd. 

(“Amarc”) the Company may acquire a 100% interest in the Tulox property, which 

was previously held by Tulox Resources Inc. (now Argentium Resources Inc.). Terms 

to exercise the option are described above in detail. 

 

3. Pursuant to a finders fee agreement dated October 13, 2011 with Leede Financial 

Markets Inc. the Company raised $110,000 and paid a finders fee equal to 10% of the 

proceeds received by the Company from the issuance of Shares to investors 

introduced to the Company by the Finder. The Company further issued to the Finder a 

non-transferable warrant (the "Finder's Warrant") to purchase 220,000 shares; equal 

to 10% of the number of Shares issued to investors introduced to the Company by the 

Finder. Each Finder's Warrant is exercisable for one share at an exercise price of 

$0.15 per share for a period of 24 months from the date the common shares are listed 

on CNSX . 
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4. Pursuant to a finders fee agreement dated August 28, 2012 with a registered investment 

dealer the Company raised $73,000 and pay a finders fee equal to 10% of the 

proceeds received by the Company from the issuance of Shares to investors 

introduced to the Company by the Finder. The Company further agreed to issued to 

the Finder a non-transferable warrant (the "Finder's Warrant") to purchase 146,000 

shares; equal to 10% of the number of Shares issued to investors introduced to the 

Company by the Finder. Each Finder's Warrant is exercisable for one share for a 

period, expiring 24 months from the date the common shares are listed on the CNSX, 

at an exercise price of $0.15 per share. 

 
 

23 Interest of Experts 
 

 There are no direct or indirect interests in the property of the Issuer or of a related 

person of the Issuer received or to be received by a person or company whose 

profession or business gives authority to a statement made by the person or company 

and who is named as having prepared or certified a part of the Listing Statement or 

prepared or certified a report or valuation described or included in the Listing 

Statement. 

 

24. Other Material Facts 
 

 There is no other material fact about the Issuer and its securities that are not disclosed 

under the preceding items and are necessary in order for the Listing Statement to 

contain full, true and plain disclosure of all material facts relating to the Issuer and its 

securities. 

 

25. Financial Statements  
 

25.1  Attached are the following: 

 

(a) Copy of all financial statements including the auditor's reports required to be 

prepared and filed under applicable securities legislation which is the 

statements for the year ended March 31, 2012, as if the Issuer were subject to 

such law; and 

 

(b)  a copy of financial statements for the interim periods of the recent fiscal year 

are located on SEDAR . 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF THE ISSUER 

Pursuant to a resolution duly passed by its Board of Directors, (full legal name of the Issuer), 

hereby applies for the listing of the above mentioned securities on CNSX.  The foregoing 
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APPENDIX A: MINERAL PROJECTS 
 

(1) Property Description and Location – The following represents information 

summarized from a technical report dated April 12, 20112 prepared by Wesley Raven 

P.Geo., an independent qualified geologist, prepared pursuant to the provisions of 

National Instrument 43-101 (the “Technical Report”) 

 

  

(a)  The TULOX property is located in south-central British Columbia in the 

Clinton Mining Division and is shown on NTS maps 092P/02 and 092P/07, 

or BCGS maps 092P.026, 092P.027, 092P.036 and 092P37. The 

approximate center of the claim group is positioned 40 kilometres east-

southeast of the village of 70 Mile House at 51º 16’ 40” North Latitude, 

120º 51’ 08” West Longitude, or in UTM Zone 10 (NAD 83) 5,682,900 mN, 

649,800 mE (Figure 1). The property is comprised of 11 contiguous mineral 

claims that encompass an area of 5,438.30 hectares.  

 

 

(b) The mineral claims give the holder rights to the subsurface minerals, there 

are no surface rights associated with the claims. All claims are due to expire 

on May 31, 2012. In order to keep the claims in good standing exploration 

work or cash-in-lieu must be filed with the Mining Recorder’s Office, in 

years 1-3 the requirement is $4/ha per year with a filing fee of $0.40/ha/year 

and in subsequent years $8/ha/yr with the same filing fee. All of the claims 

comprising the property require annual expenditures of $8/ha/yr to maintain 

the claims in good standing. 

 The author is not aware of any legal surface rights that would affect legal 

access to the property but there are a number of ranches in the area that 

should be consulted about access to the property before commencing a work 

program. In addition there are several District Lots that encompass portions 

of the mineral claims. The author does not know what rights these lots have 

and strongly suggests that Newlox obtain a legal opinion on the rights 

associated with the lots and ascertain any impact these may have on 

exploration programs. All of the District Lots are registered in the District of 

Lillooet. The lot numbers and the claims on which they exist are shown in 

Table 2 of the report. 

 Amarc Resources Ltd. (FMC Number 146093) is the registered 100% owner 

of the claims as shown on Table 1. Tenure locations are shown on Figure 2a, 

the claim position from 2008 is shown on Figure 2b with the current tenures 

comprising the property highlighted in yellow. 

 

Table 1: Tenure 

Tenure Claim Owner Map Date of Expiry Area 

Number Name   Number Acquisition Date (y/m/d) (ha) 
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519088 JOE 33 146093 (100%) 092P 2005/AUG/15 2012/Sept/30 505.65 

519090 JOE 34 146093 (100%) 092P 2005/AUG/15 2012/Sept/30 505.65 

519420 JOE 38 146093 (100%) 092P 2005/AUG/26 2012/Sept/30 505.42 

519421 JOE 39 146093 (100%) 092P 2005/AUG/26 2012/Sept/30 505.43 

524206 JOE 40 146093 (100%) 092P 2005/DEC/21 2012/Sept/30 484.97 

524207 JOE 41 146093 (100%) 092P 2005/DEC/21 2012/Sept/30 484.97 

530948 JOE 44 146093 (100%) 092P 2006/MAR/31 2012/Sept/30 484.97 

542443 JOE 46 146093 (100%) 092P 2006/OCT/04 2012/Sept/30 485.04 

542488 JOE 64 146093 (100%) 092P 2006/OCT/04 2012/Sept/30 505.42 

542489 JOE 65 146093 (100%) 092P 2006/OCT/04 2012/Sept/30 485.31 

542490 JOE 66 146093 (100%) 092P 2006/OCT/04 2012/Sept/30 485.47 

Total = 5,438.30 

 

 

 

 

(c) The Company will earn a 50% interest in the Property upon spending the 

first $1,000,000 and issuance of 1,225,000 shares and will earn a 100% 

interest in the Property on expenditure of the next $1,000,000 on the 

property and issuance of 1,100,000 shares by December 1, 2014. 

 On the preparation of a Preliminary Economic Assessment or Pre-Feasibility 

Study by the Company, Amarc may obtain a 60% interest in the Property by 

completing an additional $10 million of Mineral Exploration Expenditures 

on the Property (the “Back in Right”). On commencement of commercial 

production the Optionor will be paid a 3% Net Smelter Returns (“NSR”) 

which reverts to a 1.2 % NSR  in the event the Optionor exercises the Back 

in Right to obtain 60% interest. 

 

 

(d) The author is unaware of any environmental liabilities associated with the 

Tulox property. 

 

 

 The only risk factor the author is aware of that may impact work programs 

on the property is the nature of the District Lots that encompass portions of 

the claims as listed in Table 2. As stated previously Newlox should obtain a 

legal opinion on what rights are associated with these lots. 

 

(e) No mineral deposit has been identified on the mineral claims. There are 

numerous epithermal quartz vein and quartz vein stockwork occurrences in 

the district and the writer speculates the most likely source of the gold 

causing the geochemical anomalies in surficial deposits would be gold-

bearing epithermal quartz veins. However other types of gold deposits such 

as a skarn or porphyry-types cannot be ruled out.  
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(f) Depending upon the nature of the exploration program work permits may be 

required, usually dependent upon activities creating surface disturbance, 

such as road building, trenching, diamond drilling, etc. Processing of permit 

application can take 4-6 months, depending upon the extent of the program 

and the backlog in processing the application. Newlox has not applied for a 

mineral Notice of Work at the time of this report. 

 

(2) ACCESSIBILITY, CLIMATE, LOCAL RESOURCES, INFRASTRUCTURE 

AND PHYSIOGRAPHY 

 

 The property is road accessed from the north via 70 Mile House, BC and 

from the south via Kamloops, BC and Savona, BC. The southern access is 

from Savona via the Deadman River - Vidette Lake Forest Service Road, a 

distance of approximately 60 km. 

 

 The northern access from 70 Mile House is via the North Bonaparte - Egan 

Lake Forest Service Road, a distance of approximately 65 km. 

 

 From either 70 Mile House or Savona there is excellent access throughout 

much of the property provided by a multitude of both major and minor 

logging roads, many of which are subject to active logging operations. 

 

 The Tulox property is situated in the Interior Plateau Physiographic Region 

of British Columbia. The general topography is one of gently rolling hills, 

ranging from 1,000 metres to 1,400 metres in elevation. The area is forested 

with poplar, willow, spruce, pine and fir. Average temperatures in 70 Mile 

House are 15.2 º C in summer and -8.5 º C in winter, with annual rainfall 

and snowfall averaging 29.43 centimetres and 159 centimetres respectively 

(B.C. Ministry of Forests Public Website). A typical working season would 

be from May to the end of October, depending upon snowpack levels. 

 

 The forest and mineral resource-based communities of Kamloops, Savona, 

Ashcroft, Clinton, 70 Mile House, 100 Mile House, Williams Lake, 

Clearwater, Little Fort and Barriere, each approximately a one to two hour 

drive from the property, can supply all materials and labour for exploration 

and mine development. These communities are serviced by paved 

Government maintained highways, Canadian National Railway or Canadian 

Pacific Railway and high capacity electrical transmission lines capable of 

supplying a large mining and milling facility. Lakes and rivers in the district 

have the capacity to supply large volumes of fresh process water. 

 

(3) History - Describe: 

 

(a) Most of the historical exploration on what is now the Tulox property was 

undertaken near the southwestern portion of the claim block in the general 
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vicinity of the old Vidette gold mine that is located approximately 8.8 km to 

the south of the southern boundary of the Joe 66 claim (Figure 2a). 

 

 In 2005 Amarc Resources Ltd. (Amarc) investigated two adjacent BC 

Government Regional Geochemical Survey (RGS) low contrast 35 and 79 

ppb gold stream sediment silt anomalies in the lower reaches of Joe Ross 

Creek east-northeast of Vidette Lake (Figure 3). Detailed silt sampling by 

Amarc in Joe Ross Creek and in a tributary returned highly anomalous 

concentrations of gold. Near the up-stream termination of the anomaly in 

Three Gram Creek, (informal name), one silt sample returned 2930 ppb gold 

(Figure 3). Approximately 11.5 km to the northwest, reconnaissance silt 

sampling returned anomalous gold concentrations identifying the Scot Creek 

area as a potential source for the gold. These areas are underlain by Lower 

Triassic Nicola Group mafic volcanic and volcaniclastic rocks intruded by 

large Jurassic granodiorite-quartz diorite plutons in part unconformably 

overlain by Tertiary sedimentary and mafic volcanic rocks. 

 

 To explore for the source of the gold in the Joe Ross Creek - Three Gram 

Creek area approximately 1,510 soil samples were collected in two main 

grids and from reconnaissance traverses. Several samples returned 

anomalous gold concentrations scattered across a broad area. Note: The 

claims encompassing this area have been allowed to lapse and do not form 

part of the current Tulox Property. 

 

 Not convinced that the source of the gold had been identified by the soil 

geochemical survey, Amarc undertook an analysis of the geomorphology 

and drainage patterns in the district. It was concluded that the gold in the 

anomalous Joe Ross - Three Gram Creeks may have been winnowed from 

the reworking of gold transported in glacial till from the northwest to the 

southeast. To continue exploration for the source of the gold Amarc then 

undertook a lodgment till sampling program. A total of 152, ten kg samples 

were collected on approximately 500 m centers for a distance of 16 km in 

the up-ice direction to the north of anomalous Joe Ross and Three Gram 

creeks covering an area of approximately 70 square km (Figure 4). In an 

attempt to quantify the large statistical variance observed in some samples 

the entire sample was screened to -230 mesh and the undersize fine material 

was routinely analyzed in triplicate. Four areas with anomalous 

concentrations of gold were identified along a northwest-southeast trend. 

Till Anomalies 1, 3 and 4 are gold-only anomalies (not part of the current 

Tulox Property), whereas gold Anomaly 2 (Scot Creek) returned associated 

low-order anomalous concentrations of base metals and silver. The till 

results support the possibility that the anomalous gold concentrations found 

in the Scot Creek reconnaissance silt samples may also indicate a source for 

the gold within the Joe Ross and Three Gram Creeks drainage (Figure 4). 

The till and silt results mutually support a potential source for the gold in the 

Scot Creek drainage. 
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 An airborne magnetic survey, using a 200 m traverse line spacing, covering 

approximately 152 square kilometres was flown over the area of the four 

gold in till anomalies (Sander Geophysics Limited of Ottawa, Ontario under 

the management of Geoscience BC and the Geologic Survey of Canada, 

Kaplon, Rafael J. 2007). A discrete positive magnetic anomaly underlies in 

the Scot Creek area of till Anomaly 2 (Figure 5). 

 

 A 36 line-km grid over till Anomaly 2 in the Scot Creek area was covered 

by detailed soil geochemical and geological surveys. As well, ground 

magnetic, induced polarization and resistivity surveys were done by Peter E. 

Walcott & Associates Ltd. (Figures 6 to 10). The 1,434 sample soil survey 

identified two areas of particular interest. 

 Soil Anomaly 1 

 Near the center of the grid (5,683,200N, 650200E) a cluster of soil samples 

outline a zone of high gold concentrations ranging from 100 ppb gold to a 

high of 752 ppb gold that coincides closely with the core of the till gold 

Anomaly 2 (Figure 6). This soil anomaly occurs where Tertiary Miocene 

tuffaceous wackes unconformably overlie an Upper Triassic aged medium 

to course-grained granodiorite pluton at its contact with a fine-grained 

quartz diorite stock that is reflected by a high contrast magnetic feature 

lying to the immediate east (Figure 8). Coincident IP chargeability-

resistivity anomalies (5,683,100N, 650,800E) are centered immediately to 

the east of and up-slope from the gold soil anomaly (Figures 9, 10). 

 

 Soil Anomaly 2 

 In the south-central part of the grid (5,682,000N, 650,300E), near the 

granodiorite-diorite contact, a moderate intensity, multi-element silver-lead 

soil anomaly with a tenuous copper-gold-zinc-arsenic association remains 

open up-slope to the south (Figure 7). 

 

 This anomaly is underlain by a body of Upper Triassic quartz diorite and 

appears to lie approximately at the up-ice termination of a dispersion train 

that was determined from the till sampling results (Yeager, 2006) to be 

anomalous in a suite of base and precious metals, including gold. A large 

area of strong positive magnetic response characterizes the rocks underlying 

most of the southern portion of the airborne survey. This area is largely 

underlain by strongly magnetic Miocene Chilcotin Group basaltic rocks.  

 Induced Polarization 

 A distinct zone of I.P. chargeability high values occurs centred at 

approximately UTM 5,683,100mN, 650,700mE (Figure 9). This anomaly 

occurs immediately upslope from the high gold in soils anomaly and could 

well be related to it. A second, weaker one-line high chargeability anomaly 

occurs approximately 150m to the southwest at UTM 5,682,600mN, 

649,350mE. 
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 Two distinct zones of resistivity high values occur centred at approximately 

UTM 5,682,700mN, 685,150mE and UTM 5,683,100mN, 650,700mE 

(Figure 10). The eastern anomaly is coincident with the high chargeability 

anomaly described in the previous paragraph. The location of the western 

anomaly is roughly coincident with the location of the high gold in soils 

anomaly. The long axes of both anomalies are oriented north-south. 

Chargeability and resistivity results both suggest that there may be an 

anomalous area along the southern edge of the Scot Creek grid that is open 

to the south, similar to the soil sample results. 

 

 Magnetics 

 The ground borne magnetometer results generally agree with the airborne 

magnetometer survey results, and suggest structural direction trends that 

tend to bound the soil geochemical and I.P anomalies. 

 

 

(b) The property was not acquired by the Issuer from, an insider or promoter of 

the Issuer or an associate or affiliate of an insider or promoter, Amarc is one 

of the Hunter Dickenson Group of companies a large exploration and 

mining group of companies. 

 

 

(4) Geological Setting —  

 The Tulox property lies within the Quesnel terrane, interpreted as a volcanic 

arc terrane that spans almost the entire length of the Canadian Cordillera in 

British Columbia. Situated in the Intermontane Belt, the Quesnel terrane is 

primarily represented by Middle to Upper Triassic volcanic and sedimentary 

rocks, designated as the Nicola Group in the south. These rocks are locally 

overlain by Lower Jurassic volcanic and sedimentary rock, and are cut by 

several suites of Late Triassic to Early Jurassic plutons. Specifically, the 

Tulox group of claims includes the following lithologies: Chilcotin Group, 

Nicola Group, and two differentiated intrusive suites (Figure 11). 

 

 Chilcotin Group (MiPICvb) 

 The Miocene to Pleistocene Chilcotin Group comprises the Deadman River 

and Chasm Formations. The Deadman River Formation lithologies include: 

rhyolite ach, tuffaceous sandstone, siltstone, and shale. The Chasm 

Formation includes vesicular and amygdaloidal basalt flows. 

 

 Nicola Group (uTrNvb) 

 The Upper Triassic Nicola Group comprises a north-trending belt of 

volcanic, volcanoclastic and sedimentary rocks. These lithologies have a 

lower greenschist metamorphic grade, and are intruded by Late Triassic to 

Early Jurassic comagmatic plutons. 

 

 Granodiorite (LTrJgd) 
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 The Late Triassic to Early Jurassic unnamed LTrJgd lithology comprises a 

granodioritic intrusive unit. 

 

 Syenite to Monzonite (LTrJsy) 

 The Late Triassic to Early Jurassic unnamed LTrJsy unit comprises a 

syenitic to monzonitic intrusive unit. 

 

 No zones of significant mineralization or alteration are known on the 

mineral claims as outcrop is relatively rare and overburden cover is 

extensive. 

 

 More recent work by Amarc did outline areas of interest that led to 

additional exploration surveys and it is these areas that have the most 

potential for mineral exploration. 

 

        In the lower reaches of Joe Ross Creek two gold stream sediment anomalies 

(35 and 79 ppb gold) were discovered from the BC Government Regional 

Geochemical Survey. Reconnaissance silt sampling also outlined anomalous 

gold samplis in the Scot Creek area. Detailed silt sampling by Amarc in Joe 

Ross Creek and a tributary creek, informally named Three Gram Creek, 

returned one highly anomalous silt sample assaying 2930 ppb gold. This 

was followed up with soil sampling in two grids and some reconnaissance 

lines which revealed several anomalous gold concentrations scattered across 

a broad area. 

 

 Amarc was not convinced that the gold anomalies in Joe Ross and Three 

Gram Creeks had been identified by the soil geochemical survey so they 

undertook geomorpholocical studies to determine ice flow directions. Till 

sampling indicated that the anomalous silt samples from Joe Ross and Three 

Gram Creeks may have originated from the Scot Creek area as the till 

samples outlined four anomalous areas. These were followed up with an 

airborne magnetic survey that outlined a magnetic anomaly beneath till 

anomaly 2. A 35 line-km grid was established over the area for detailed soil 

geochemical and geology surveys and an IP survey with the surveys 

indicating an anomalous area along the southern edge of Scot Creek grid 

that is open to the south. 

 

 INTERPRETATION AND CONCLUSIONS 

 Southeasterly flowing glacial ice transported fine particles of gold in till 

from an unknown source to the northwest of Joe Ross and Three Gram 

Creeks. This fine particulate free gold was concentrated by fluvial 

reworking in the southwesterly flowing Joe Ross Creek paleo-channel and 

gave rise to the stream sediment anomalies. Long distance glacial transport 

of the gold in till also gives a plausible explanation for the widely scattered 

anomalous soil samples in the Joe Ross Creek area and the lack of coherent 

multi-sample anomalies more indicative of a local source. The up-ice cluster 
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of lodgement till gold anomalies in spatial association with the Scot Creek 

stream silt and soil Anomaly 1 may reflect an underlying bedrock source for 

the gold. Alternately the source of the gold may be associated with the 

induced polarization anomaly that is located a few hundred metres up slope. 

Both the induced polarization target and soil Anomaly 1 warrant drill 

testing. Furthermore, multi-element, silver-lead soil Anomaly 2 remains 

open to the south and warrants the extension of the soil and induced 

polarization surveys for at least 800 m to the south to potentially define 

additional drill targets.  

 

 The author is unaware of any significant risks or uncertainties that could 

affect the exploration data gathered to date. The information was collected 

systematically and in accordance with industry accepted practices. The only 

potential risk are the two District Lots to the south of the Scot Creek grid 

which may limit the ability to explore in that direction until the rights 

associated with the lots are determined. If it is privately held land an 

arrangement can be made with the landholder for access. 

 

 In conclusion the Scot Creek area represents a valid exploration target. The 

area hosts multi-element soil geochemical anomalies with coincident 

magnetic and electromagnetic anomalies that are worthy of additional 

exploration to determine the source of the anomaly. Rock outcrop is not 

abundant on the Scot creek grid so the surveys done to date were necessary 

to focus in on an area of interest that could net be readily determined on the 

basis of anomalous, surface rock samples. 

 

 

      (5) Exploration Information — Newlox Gold Ventures Corp. has not completed 

any exploration work on the property. 

 

(6)  Mineralization — No mineral deposit has been identified on the mineral 

claims. There are numerous epithermal quartz vein and quartz vein 

stockwork occurrences in the district and the writer speculates the most 

likely source of the gold causing the geochemical anomalies in surficial 

deposits would be gold-bearing epithermal quartz veins. However other 

types of gold deposits such as a skarn or porphyry-types cannot be ruled out.  

 

(7) Drilling — No drilling is known to have been done on the property. 

 

(8) Sampling and Analysis  

 

 Newlox has not conducted sampling on the property and, therefore, no sample 

preparation or analyses have been done. 

 DATA VERIFICATION 

 The author did not verify all of the data relied up on in this report. The Till 

geochemistry data was collected on behalf of the Ministry of Energy, Mines and 
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Petroleum Resources of British Columbia, the details of which are in Open File 

1997-9. The author reviewed the data provided by Sitec Ventures and 0789982 

BC Ltd. and the geochemical assessment report by D. Yeager, (2006) Assessment 

Report 28680. It is the author's opinion that the sampling methodology, sample 

preparation, security and analytical procedures used by Sitec Ventures and 

0789982 BC Ltd.and the laboratory were both adequate and conducted in 

compliance with standard industry accepted practices at the time of the work. The 

laboratory used was independent of 0789982 BC Ltd. And Sitec Ventures. 

 

(10) Mineral Resources and Mineral Reserves — There are no known mineral 

resources or reserves on the Tulox property. 

 

(11) Mining Operations — Not applicable 

 

(12) Exploration and Development  

 It is recommended that a two-phased exploration program be conducted to better 

define the anomalous areas on the Scot Creek target. Phase 1 would entail an 

expanded soil geochemical and geophysical surveys, magnetic and 

electromagnetic (IP) surveys and test trenching in areas of potentially thin 

overburden cover on the IP chargeability anomaly; Phase 2 would involve 

preliminary drill testing of the targets developed in the preceding phase. 

 

 The original grid established at Scot Creek was at 100 meter line spacing with 50 

metre spacing between stations. The soil samples were collected at 100 metre line 

spacing but the ground geophysical surveys were completed at 200 metre line 

spacing. It is recommended that the ground magnetic and IP geophysical surveys 

be completed on the lines not previously surveyed resulting in a 100 metre line 

spacing to match the data from the soil sampling program. The grid lines are old 

and will likely have to be brushed out, especially for the IP survey The data from 

the two generations of surveys should then be merged into one map. In addition 

multi-element silver-lead soil Anomaly 2, at the south end of the Scot Creek grid 

remains open to the south. Additional east-west lines at 100 metre spacing and 1 

km long should be established for subsequent soil geochemical and geophysical 

(Mag, IP) surveys. Trenching should be considered over the central portion of the 

IP chargeability anomaly to test for depth of overburden. If overburden depths are 

not too great this may expose bedrock for sampling and aid in determining the 

source of the conductor. 

 

 Phase 2 would involve preliminary drill testing of the soil and IP anomalies. A 

modest program of approximately 1000 metres (5 holes each 200m in length) 

would provide good information across the length of the IP anomaly using a 200 

metres hole spacing. Even if the surveys in Phase 1 don’t add much additional 

information to the existing database the drilling would test the targets and likely 

determine their cause. 
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Phase 1: Geochemical, Geophysical grid coverage and Trenching 

 Linecutting 

  Brush out existing lines (30 line-km) 5,000.00 

  Cut new grid to south (8 line-km) 2,000.00 

 Soil Sampling: 

  8 line-km/line at 20 samples/km (160 samples @ $30/sample) 4,800.00 

 Magnetometer Survey 

  38 line-km @ $100/km 3,800.00 

 IP Survey 

  38 line-km at $3000/km 114,000.00 

 Transportation 

  Pickup truck, 30 days @ 125/day 3,750.00 

 Trenching 

  2 trenches, 100 m long with backhoe 20,000.00 

 Meals and Accommodations 

  120 man-days @ $125/day/man 15,000.00 

TOTAL PHASE 1 168,350.00 

 

Phase 2: Preliminary Diamond Drill Testing of Scot Creek Grid Targets 

 1000 metres at $300/metre all inclusive (drilling, wages, assays) 300,000.00 

TOTAL PHASE 2 300,000.00 

 

TOTAL PHASE 1 + PHASE 2 468,350.00 



  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Newlox Gold Ventures Corp. 
March 31, 2012 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To     the Directors of 
Newlox Gold Ventures Corp.  
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Newlox Gold Ventures Corp., which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at March 31, 2012 and the statements of loss and comprehensive loss, 
shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the period from the date of incorporation on April 7, 2011 to March 31, 2012 
and the related notes including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our 
audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  Those standards require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s  internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 
 
Opinion 
In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Newlox Gold 
Ventures Corp. as at March 31, 2012, and the results of its operations, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the 
period from the date of incorporation on April 7, 2011 to March 31, 2012 in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards. 
 
Emphasis of Matters 
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 in the financial statements which indicates that the 
Company has incurred losses to date.  This condition, along with other matters as set forth in Note 1, indicates the 
existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern.  

 “Charlton & Company” 
 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
Vancouver, British Columbia 
July  26, 2012 
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NEWLOX GOLD VENTURES CORP. 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
(Expresses in Canadian Dollars) 
As at 
 

 March 31, 

 2012 
 $ 

  

Assets  

Current  

Cash 86,736 

Taxes Recoverable 7,499 

 94,235 

Mineral Property Interest (Note 4) 56,200 

 150,435 

  

Liabilities  

Current  

 Payables and accruals 8,801 

 Due to related parties (Note 8) 13,998 

 22,799 

  

Equity  

Share capital (Note 5) 231,750 

Deficit (104,114) 

 127,636 

 150,435 

Nature and Continuance of Operations (Note 1) 
Corporate Restructuring and Commitment (Note 3) 
Subsequent Events (Note 11) 
 
These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on July 26,  2012.  They are 
signed on the Company’s behalf by: 
 
 
 
  

“Donald Gordon” “Thomas Bell” 
Director Director 

 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed financial statements.
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NEWLOX GOLD VENTURES CORP. 
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
 

  From April 7, 2011 
date of Incorporation to 

March 31, 2012 
$ 

   

Expenses   

 Administrative Costs   669  

 Consulting fees   13,575  

 Professional Fees   24,783  

 Management fees   28,350  

 Mining Property Expenses   28,616  

 Regulatory and transfer agent fees   8,121  

Net loss and comprehensive loss   (104,114)  

Basic and diluted loss per common share   (0.01)  

Weighted average no. of common shares outstanding  
 

9,273,202  

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed financial statements.
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NEWLOX GOLD VENTURES CORP. 
STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
 
 Share Capital 

Reserve 
$ 

Deficit 
$ 

Equity 
$ 

Number Amount 

 $ 

Share issued for cash on     

 Incorporation, April 7, 2011 1 1 - - 1 

Incorporation share cancelled (1) (1) - - (1) 

Shares issued per Arrangement Agreement 
(Note 3) 
 

7,800,911 61,200 - - 61,200 

Shares issued per Option Agreement – 
October 2011 250,000 500 - - 500 

Private Placement – November 2011 2,500,000 125,000 - - 125,000 

Finders’ Fee – November 2011 - (11,000) - - (11,000) 

Debt Settlement for Shares – February 2012 396,000 19,800 - - 19,800 

Private Placement – February 2012 500,000 25,000 - - 25,000 

Shares issued per Option Agreement – March 
2012 225,000 11,250 - - 11,250 

Net loss - - - (104,114) (104,114) 

Balance, March 31, 2012 11,671,991 231,750 - (104,114) 127,636 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed financial statements. 
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NEWLOX GOLD VENTURES CORP. 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
  From April 7, 2011 

Date of Incorporation to 
March 31, 2012 

$ 
  

 

Cash flows from operating activities   

 Net loss  (104,114)  

 Items not affecting cash                    31,550 

 Changes in non-cash working capital   

  Accounts receivable  (7,499)  

  Due to related parties  13,998  

  Payables and accruals  8,801  

 Net cash used in operating activities  (57,264)  

   

Cash flows from financing activities   

 Proceeds from private placement  150,000  

 Share issue costs  (11,000)  

 Net cash provided by operating activities  139,000  

    

Cash flows from investing activities    

      Corporate restructuring  5,000  

   

Increase in cash and cash equivalents  86,736  

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning  -  

   

   

Cash and cash equivalents, closing  86,736  

Significant non-cash activities   

Re-distribution of subsidiaries shares to 
shareholders 

 61,200  

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed financial statements. 
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NEWLOX GOLD VENTURES CORP. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
March 31, 2012 
 
 
Note 1 Nature and Continuance of Operations 
 
 
Newlox Gold Ventures Corp. (the “Company” or ‘Newlox’) was incorporated on April 7, 2011 and, pursuant to an 

arrangement agreement dated April 8, 2011 (the “Arrangement Agreement”) between the Company and Tulox Resources 

Inc. (“Tulox”), the Company was assigned the interest in the Tulox Property and $5,000 in cash from Tulox (the 

“Arrangement”), and commenced operations as a mineral property exploration company. The $5,000 deposited from 

Tulox as part of the Arrangement provided the Company with the capital necessary to fulfill its short-term needs. In 

consideration the Company issued 7,800,911 common shares to the Tulox shareholders (“Arrangement Shares”) who 

held Tulox shares on the share distribution record date set at August 25, 2011. 

 

The Company’s principal business following the Arrangement is to commence operations as a development stage 

company with the principal business being the exploration and development of mining properties. The Company may also 

acquire additional properties and will carry out early stage exploration on such mineral properties and then sell, option or 

joint venture the properties. The head office, principal address, and records office of the Company are located at 1111 

West Hastings Street, Suite 1220, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6E 2J3. 

 

These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting principal applicable to a going concern which 

assumes the Company will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business rather 

than through a process of forced liquidation. The Company’s continuing operations, as intended, and its financial success 

may be dependent upon the extent to which it can discover mineralization and the economic viability of developing any 

such additional properties. 

 

The discovery of mineralization and the development of mineral properties to the point where they may be sold, optioned 

or joint ventured may take years to complete and the amount of resulting income, if any, is difficult to determine with any 

certainty. As a development stage company, the company does not anticipate producing revenues for some time, other 

than from the sale, optioning or joint venturing of any mineral properties it may acquire and the sales of marketable 

securities. The sale value of any mineralization discovered by the Company and the value of the Company’s investments 

in marketable securities are not predictable. The success of the Company is largely dependent upon factors beyond its 

control. These factors raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going-concern. 

 

These financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded 

asset amounts and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue in 

existence. 

 
 
Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies 
 
 
Basis of presentation 
 
In conjunction with the Company’s annual audited consolidated financial statements to be issued under International 

Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) for the period from date of incorporation on April 7, 2011 to March 31, 2012, these 

consolidated financial statements present the Company’s financial results of operations and financial position as at March 

31, 2012 and for the period from date of incorporation on April 7, 2011 to March 31, 2012.  
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NEWLOX GOLD VENTURES CORP. 
NOTES TO THE CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
March 31, 2012 
 
 
Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
 
Basis of presentation (continued) 
 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) 

as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and interpretations of the International Financial 

Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”).   

 
These financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars, which is the Company’s functional and reporting currency. 

These financial statements are prepared on a historical cost basis except for financial instruments classified as fair value 

through profit or loss, which are stated at their fair value. 

 
Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make certain estimates, 

judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 

statements and the reported revenues and expenses during the period. 

 

Although management uses historical experience and its best knowledge of the amount, events or actions to form the 

basis for judgments and estimates, actual results may differ from these estimates. 

 

The most significant accounts that require estimates as the basis for determining the stated amounts include the 

recoverability of receivables, valuation of investments, valuation of share-based payments, and the valuation allowance 

for deferred income tax assets. 

 
Impairment 
 
At the end of each reporting period, the Company’s assets are reviewed to determine whether there is any indication that 

those assets may be impaired. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to 

determine the extent of the impairment, if any. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and 

value in use. Fair value is determined as the amount that would be obtained from the sale of the asset in an arm’s length 

transaction between knowledgeable and willing parties. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are 

discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value 

of money and the risks amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount and the impairment loss is recognized in 

the profit of loss for the period. For an asset that doses not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable 

amount is determined for the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

 

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased 

to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but to an amount that does not exceed the carrying amount that would 

have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A 

reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss. 
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NEWLOX GOLD VENTURES CORP. 
NOTES TO THE CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
March 31, 2012 
 
 
Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
 
Financial instruments 
 
Financial assets 
 
Financial assets are initially recognized at fair value and are classified into one of the following categories, depending on 

the purpose for which the asset was acquired. 

 

Fair value through profit or loss – derivatives or assets acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or 

repurchasing it in the near term. They are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with changes in fair 

value recognized in the statement of operations. 

 

Loans and receivables – non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an 

active market. They are carried at cost less any provision for impairment. Individually significant receivables are 

considered for impairment when they are past due or when other objective evidence is received that a specific 

counterparty will default. 

 

Held-to-maturity investments – non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities 

that the company’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. These assets are measured at 

amortized cost using the effective interest method. If there is objective evidence that the investment is impaired, 

determined by reference to external credit ratings and other relevant indicators, the financial asset is measured at the 

present value of estimated future cash flows. Any changes to the carrying amount of the investment, including impairment 

losses, are recognized in the statement of operations. 

 

Available-for-sale – non-derivative financial assets not included in the above categories are classified as available-for-

sale. They are carried at fair value with changes in fair value recognized directly in equity. Where a decline in the fair 

value of an available-for-sale financial asset constitutes objective evidence of impairment, the amount of the loss is 

removed from equity and recognized in the statement of operations. 

 

All financial assets except for those at fair value through profit or loss are subject to review for impairment at the minimum 

of at each reporting date. Financial assets are impaired when there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a 

group of financial assets is impaired. Different criteria to determine impairment are applied for each category of financial 

assets described above. 

 
Financial liabilities 
 
The Company classifies its financial liabilities into one of two categories: 

 

Fair value through profit or loss – derivatives or liabilities acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or 

repurchasing it in the near term. They are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with changes in fair 

value recognized in the statement of operations. 

 

Other financial liabilities – includes promissory notes, amounts due to related parties and payables and accruals, all of 

which are recognized at amortized cost. 
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NEWLOX GOLD VENTURES CORP. 
NOTES TO THE CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
March 31, 2012 
 
 
Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
 
Financial instruments (continued) 
 
Classification of Financial Instruments 
 
The Company has classified its cash as fair value through profit or loss; cash equivalents and deposit as held-to-maturity; 

receivables as loans and receivables; and payables and accruals as other financial liabilities. 

 
Share-based payments 
 
The Company applies the fair value method of accounting for stock option awards using the Black-Scholes option pricing 

model. Under this method, the Company recognizes compensation expenses for employee stock option awards, based on 

the grant date fair value, for each vesting installment, over the vesting period of the options. Each installment is valued 

separately, based on assumptions determined from historical data, and recognized as compensation expense over each 

installment’s individual tranche vesting period. Forfeiture estimates are recognized in the period they are estimated, and 

the revised for actual forfeitures in subsequent periods. 

 

In situations where stock option awards are issued to non-employees and some or all of the goods or services received by 

the entity as consideration cannot be specifically identified, they are measured at fair value of the share-based payment. 

Otherwise, share-based payments are measured at the fair value of goods or services received. 

 
Income taxes 
 
Income tax is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which 

case it is recognized in equity. Current tax expense is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using 

tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at period end, adjusted for amendments to tax payable with regards to 

previous years. 

 

Deferred tax is recorded using the statement of financial position liability method, providing for temporary differences 

between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation 

purposes. The following temporary differences are not provided for: goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial 

recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable loss; and differences relating to investments in 

subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred tax 

provided is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, 

using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date. 

 

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against 

which the asset can be utilized. To the extent that the Company does not consider it probable that a future tax will be 

recovered, it provides a valuation allowance against that excess. 

 

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognized at the same time as the liability to pay 

the related dividend. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current 

tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and 

the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. 
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NEWLOX GOLD VENTURES CORP. 
NOTES TO THE CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
March 31, 2012 
 
 
Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
 
 
Loss per share 
 
The Company uses the treasury stock method to compute the dilutive effect of options, warrants and similar instruments. 

Under this method the dilutive effect on loss per share is recognized on the use of proceeds that could be obtained upon 

exercise of options, warrants and similar instruments. It assumes that the proceeds would be used to purchase common 

shares at the average market price during the year. For the years presented, the dilutive effect has not been computed as 

it proved to be anti-dilutive. 

 

Basic loss per share has been calculated using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the 

period. 

 
Comprehensive income (loss) 
 
Comprehensive income (loss) is the change in the Company’s net assets that results from transactions, events and 

circumstances from sources other that the Company’s shareholders and includes items that are not included in net profit. 

Other comprehensive income consists of changes to unrealized gain and losses on available-for-sale financial assets, 

changes to unrealized gains and losses on the effective portion of cash flow hedges and changes to foreign currency 

translation adjustments of self-sustaining foreign operations during the period. Comprehensive income measures net 

earnings for the period plus other comprehensive income. Amounts reported as other comprehensive income are 

accumulated in separate component of equity as Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income. The Company has not had 

other comprehensive income since inception. 

 
Mineral exploration expenditures 
 
The Company’s accounting policy relating to mineral exploration expenditures is to expense all exploration expenditures 

when incurred. 

 

Significant costs related to property acquisitions are capitalized until the viability of the mineral interest is determined. 

When it has been established that a mineral interest is commercially mineable and an economic analysis has been 

completed, the costs subsequently incurred to develop a mine on the property prior to the start of mining operations are 

capitalized and will be amortized against production following commencement of commercial production, or written off if 

the property is sold, allowed to lapse or abandoned. 

 
Segment reporting 
 
A reportable segment, as defined by ‘IFRS 8 Operating Segments’, is a distinguishable business or geographical 

component of the Company, which are subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments. The 

Company considers its primary reporting format to be business segments. The Company considers that it has only one 

reportable segment, being the mineral exploration segment. 
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NEWLOX GOLD VENTURES CORP. 
NOTES TO THE CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
March 31, 2012 
 
 
Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
 
Future changes in accounting policies 
 
The Company has reviewed new and revised accounting pronouncements that have been issued but are not yet effective 

and determined that the following may have an impact on the Company: 

 

IFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”: 

 

As of January 1, 2013, the Company will be required to adopt IFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”, which is the result of the 

first phase of the IASB’s project to replace IAS 39, “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”. The new 

standard replaces the current multiple classification and measurement models for financial assets and liabilities with a 

single model that has only two classification categories: amortized cost and fair value. The adoption of this standard 

should not have a material impact on the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements. 

 

IFRS 10, “Consolidated Financial Statements”: 

 

IFRS 10 is a new standard which identifies the concept of control as the determining factor in assessing whether an entity 

should be included in the consolidated financial statements of the parent company.  Control is comprised of three 

elements:  power over an investee; exposure to variable returns from an investee; and the ability to use power to affect 

the reporting entity’s returns.  IFRS 10 is effective for annual period beginning on or after January 1, 2013.  Earlier 

adoption is permitted. 

 

IFRS 11, “Joint Arrangements”: 

 

IFRS 11 is a new standard which focuses on classifying joint arrangements by their rights and obligations rather than their 

legal form.  Entities are classified into two groups:  parties having rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities of 

an arrangement, and rights to the net assets of an arrangement.  Entities in the former case account for assets, liabilities, 

revenues and expenses in accordance with the arrangement, whereas entities in the later case account for the 

arrangement using the equity method.  IFRS 11 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.  

Earlier application is permitted. 
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NEWLOX GOLD VENTURES CORP. 
NOTES TO THE CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
March 31, 2012 
 
 
Note 3 Corporate Restructure and Commitment 
 
 
The Company and Tulox entered into the Arrangement Agreement on April 8, 2011 to conduct a corporate restructuring 

by way of a statutory  plan of arrangement (the “Arrangement”) to transfer Tulox’s interest in the Tulox Property and 

$5,000 cash to the Company (the “Transfer”) which were completed on July 7, 2011 and August 23, 2011 respectively. As 

consideration for the Transfer, the Company issued 7,800,911 common shares to shareholders of Tulox on August 25, 

2011. The Arrangement Agreement was approved by Tulox’s shareholders on May 30, 2011 and by the Supreme Court of 

British Columbia on June 3, 2011. 

 

The Arrangement Agreement became effective on August 11, 2011. As a result, the Transfer was executed and the 

Company issued the Arrangement Shares to shareholders of Tulox as of August 25, 2011. 

 

As part of the Arrangement Agreement, all stock options issued by Tulox and outstanding as at August 11, 2011, the 

effective date (“Tulox Share Commitments”) would entitle the option holder to receive one common share of Tulox and 

one common share of the Company upon exercise. In consideration, the Company would be entitled to receive a 

percentage of the proceeds equal to the fair market value of the assets transferred to the Company divided by the fair 

market value of all assets of Tulox immediately prior to completion of the Arrangement. As at August 11, 2011, Tulox has 

250,000 outstanding stock options. Prior to the effective date of the Arrangement, holders of these Tulox Share 

Commitments as of August 10, 2011 had agreed to waive their rights to receive shares of the Company upon exercise of 

their Tulox stock options. 

 
 
Note 4 Mineral Property Interest 
 
 
Pursuant to an agreement dated May 7, 2007 and amended August 22, 2007, November 8, 2007, January 15, 2008, April 

15, 2008 and August 1, 2008, Tulox, the Company’s former parent company, agreed to acquire 13 mineral claims, 

collectively known as the Tulox Property, located in the Clinton Mining Division, British Columbia, Canada, from Amarc 

Resources Ltd. (“Amarc”) and another party. 

 

The agreement was changed to an option agreement dated April 21, 2009 and amended March 23, 2010 and July 27, 

2010 to acquire a 100% interest in the Tulox Property. 

 

Pursuant to agreement dated December 15, 2011 with Amarc Resources Ltd. (“Amarc”) Newlox may acquire a 100% 

interest in the Tulox property, which was previously held by Tulox Resources Inc. (now Argentium Resources Inc.) under 

the following terms: 

  

1)     Issue 250,000 common shares in the capital of the Company, following the issuance of shares of the Company 

pursuant to the Plan of Arrangement (now issued); 

2)     Issue 225,000 common shares in the capital of the Company, following the date of the execution of the agreement 

(now issued); 

3)     Expenditures of $250,000 CDN and a further 225,000 common shares in the capital of the Company on or before 

December 30, 2012; 

4)     Expenditures of $250,000 CDN and a further 225,000 common shares in the capital of the Company on or before 

April 30, 2013; 
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NEWLOX GOLD VENTURES CORP. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
March 31, 2012 
 
 
Note 4 Mineral Property Interest (continued) 
 
 
4)     a further $500,000 CDN of expenditures and 550,000 common shares in the capital of the Company on or before 

December 30, 2013; 

5)     an additional $1,000,000 CDN of expenditures and 1,100,000 common shares in the capital of the Company on or 

before December 1, 2014. 

 

Amarc has the right to obtain a 60% interest (“Back-In Right”) in the property on the preparation of a preliminary economic 

assessment or pre-feasibility study by Newlox, by completing an additional $10 million of mineral exploration expenditures 

on the property. Newlox must complete and deliver a preliminary economic assessment or pre-feasibility study be 

February 14, 2015. Newlox’s interest in the property and the option agreement will be deemed to be relinquished or 

abandoned if it fails to do so. 

 

Amarc retains a 3% net smelter royalty (“NSR”) return following the commencement of commercial production, which is 

reduced to 1.2% should Amarc exercise its 60% Back-In Right. 

 

On July 7, 2011, Tulox assigned the interest in the Tulox Property to the Company. The shareholders of Tulox at the time 

of the Arrangement continued to collectively own an interest in the Tulox Property, albeit through an altered corporate 

structure. Consequently, given that there was no substantive change in the beneficial ownership of the interest in the 

Tulox Property at the time that is was assigned to the Company, the transfer must be recorded under IFRS using the 

historical carrying values of the purchase agreement in the accounts of Tulox which was $56,200 at the time of the 

transfer. 

 
 
Note 5 Share Capital 
 
 
Authorized 
      Unlimited number of common shares without par value 
 
Common shares 
The total number of common shares issued and outstanding as of March 31, 2012 was 11,671,911. 

 

On August 25, 2011 the Company completed all outstanding obligations under the Arrangement Agreement between the 

Company, Tulox and a certain other party by issuing a total of 7,800,911 Arrangement Shares to Tulox shareholders as 

consideration for the Transfer from Tulox. As a result of completing the Arrangement and subsequent to issuing the 

Arrangement Shares, the Issuer became a reporting issuer in the jurisdictions of British Columbia and Alberta. 

 

On October 4, 2011 the Company issued 250,000 common shares to Amarc pursuant to s.4.2 (a) of the Tulox Property 

option agreement. 

 

On November 9, 2011 the Company issued 2,500,000 common shares at $0.05 per share for total proceeds of $125,000 

in connection with a private placement. Leede Financial Markets Inc. (“Leede”) received 220,000 share purchase warrants 

exercisable at $0.15 per share for a period of 18 months from November 9, 2011 and $11,000 cash as a finder’s fee with 

respect to $110,000 raised by Leede. 
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NEWLOX GOLD VENTURES CORP. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
March 31, 2012 
 
 
Note 5 Share Capital (continued) 
 
 
On February 14, 2012, the Company issued 396,000 common shares at $0.05 per share, to settle debt for services of 

$19,800. On February 14, 2012, the Company issued 500,000 common shares at $0.05 per share for a private placement 

made. 

 

On March 31, 2012 the Company issued 225,000 common shares to Amarc pursuant to s.4.2 (b) of the Tulox Property 

option agreement. 

 
 
Stock Options 
 
The company has adopted an incentive stock option plan (the “Option Plan”) which provides that the Board of Directors of 

the Company may from time to time, in its discretion, and in accordance with the applicable stock exchange’s 

requirements, grant to directors, officers, employees and consultants to the Company, non-transferable options to 

purchase common shares. Pursuant to the Option Plan, the number of common share reserved for issuance will not 

exceed 10% of the issued and outstanding common shares of the Company. Options granted under the Option Plan can 

have a maximum exercise term of 5 years from the date of grant. Vesting terms will be determined at the time of grant by 

the Board of Directors. As at and during  the period ended March 31, 2012, no options were granted or outstanding. 

 
 
Note 6 Capital Management 
 
 
The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, based on the funds available to the Company, in 

order to support future business opportunities. The Board of Directors does not establish quantitative return on capital 

criteria for management, but rather relies on the expertise of the Company’s management to sustain future development 

of the business. 

 

In order to carry future projects and pay for administrative costs, the Company will spend its existing working capital and 

raise additional funds as needed. Management reviews its capital management approach on an ongoing basis and 

believes that this approach, given the relative size of the Company, is reasonable. 

 

There were no changes in the Company’s approach to capital management during the period ended March 31, 2012. The 

Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements. 

 
 
 
Note 7 Financial Instruments 
 
 
The Company has classified fair value measurements of its financial instruments using a fair value hierarchy that reflects 

the significance of inputs used in making the measurements as follows: 

 

Level 1 – Valuation based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets of liabilities; 
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NEWLOX GOLD VENTURES CORP. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
March 31, 2012 
 
 
Note 7 Financial Instruments (continued) 
 
 

Level 2 – Valuations based on directly or indirectly observable inputs in active markets for similar assets or liabilities, other 

than Level 1 prices, such as quoted interest of currency exchange rates; and 

 

Level 3 – Valuations based on significant inputs that are not derived from observable market data, such as discounted 

cash flow methodologies based on internal cash flow forecasts. 

 

As at March 31, 2012, the Company’s financial instruments consists of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, 

accounts payable and accrued liabilities, and amounts due to related parties. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at 

fair value using a level 1 fair value measurement.  The carrying value of accounts receivable, accounts payable and 

accrued liabilities approximate their fair value because of their nature and respective maturity dates or durations. 

 

Unless otherwise noted, it is management’s option that the Company is not exposed to significant credit, liquidity or 

market risks arising from these financial instruments.  The fair value of these financial instruments approximates their 

carrying value, unless otherwise noted. 

 

a) Foreign currency risk - The Company’s activities that result in exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange 

rates consist of the sale of products to customers invoiced in foreign currencies and the purchase of services, materials, 

and property and equipment from suppliers invoiced in foreign currencies.  The Company does not use derivative 

instruments to hedge its currency risk.   

 

b) Market risk - Market risk is the risk that changes in market conditions, such as input parts prices, interest rates, and 

foreign exchange rates, will affect the Company's cash flows or the value of its financial instruments. The objective of 

market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable limits, while maximizing 

returns. The Company does not utilize financial derivatives or other contracts to manage market risks. 

 

c) Liquidity risk - Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in paying obligations as they come due. 

The Company's financial liabilities consist of accounts payable, and related party payables. Accounts payable consists of 

invoices payable to trade suppliers for capital and operating expenditures and for general corporate expenses. The 

Company processes invoices within a normal payment period. These funds will be used to defray the development and 

certification costs related to the project.  Related party payables do not bear any interest and are provided on a non-

secured basis.  The Company prepares funds from operations and capital expenditure budgets, which are regularly 

monitored and updated. 
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NEWLOX GOLD VENTURES CORP. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
March 31, 2012 
 
 
Note 8 Related Party Transactions 
 
 
The Company and Tulox, its former parent company, entered into the Arrangement Agreement described in Note 3. The 

Arrangement Agreement provides for the transfer from Tulox of $5,000 and the interest in the Tulox Property to the 

Company, as a wholly-owned subsidiary, and the immediate distribution of a controlling interest in the common shares of 

the Company to the shareholders of Tulox as at August 25, 2011. The shareholders of Tulox at the completion of the 

Arrangement Agreement will continue to collectively own the interest in the Tulox Property, albeit through an altered 

corporate structure. Consequently, given that there will be no substantive change in the beneficial ownership of the option 

agreement at the time that it is transferred to the Company, the transfer will be recorded under IFRS using the historical 

carrying values of the interest in the Tulox Property in the accounts of Tulox at the time of the transfer. 

 

During the year ended March 31, 2012, the Company incurred $5,100 in management fees from a company owned and 

controlled by its President and at March 31, 2012 the Company owes the President and his company $4,614 for 

management fees which have been included in due to related parties. 

 

During the year ended March 31, 2012, the Company incurred $13,800 in management fees from a company owned and 

controlled by a Director and at March 31, 2012 the Company owes the Director and his company $9,384 for management 

fees which have been included in due to related parties. 

 

All transactions with related parties have occurred in the normal course of operations and are measured at their fair value 

as determined by management. Unless otherwise indicated, the period-end balances are unsecured, non-interest bearing, 

without specific terms of repayment and have arisen from advances or the provision of services and fees described. 

 
 
Note 9 Segmented Information 
 
 
During the year ended March 31, 2012, the Company had one reportable operation segment, being the acquisition, 

exploration, and disposition of interests in mineral property located in one geographical segment, Canada. 

 

 
Note 10 Income Taxes 
 
 

The following table reconciles the amount of income tax recoverable on application of the combined statutory 
Canadian federal and provincial income tax rates: 

       2012 

Combined statutory tax rate    27.25% 

Income tax recovery at combined statutory rate    $        (28,371) 
Valuation allowance    28,371 

Future income tax recovery    $                  - 
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NEWLOX GOLD VENTURES CORP. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
March 31, 2012 
 

 
Note 10 Income Taxes (continued) 
 

 

Significant components of the Company’s future income tax assets (liabilities) are shown below:  

     2012 
   
Non-capital loss carry forwards   $         29,029 

 
Resource reductions   21,204 
Less: valuation allowance   (47,233) 

Net future income tax liability   $                  - 
 
As at March 31, 2012, the Company had approximately $104,114 of non-capital loss carry forwards available to 
reduce taxable income for future years. The non-capital losses expire in 2032. 
 

 

 
Note 11 Subsequent Events 
 

 
 

The Company has paid cash in lieu through Amarc Resources Ltd.  to the British Columbia Mineral Titles branch to keep 

all its claims in good standing to September 30, 2012. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To     the Directors of 
Newlox Gold Ventures Corp.  
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Newlox Gold Ventures Corp., which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at March 31, 2012 and the statements of loss and comprehensive loss, 
shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the period from the date of incorporation on April 7, 2011 to March 31, 2012 
and the related notes including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our 
audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  Those standards require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s  internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 
 
Opinion 
In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Newlox Gold 
Ventures Corp. as at March 31, 2012, and the results of its operations, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the 
period from the date of incorporation on April 7, 2011 to March 31, 2012 in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards. 
 
Emphasis of Matters 
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 in the financial statements which indicates that the 
Company has incurred losses to date.  This condition, along with other matters as set forth in Note 1, indicates the 
existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern.  

 “Charlton & Company” 
 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
Vancouver, British Columbia 
July  26, 2012 
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NEWLOX GOLD VENTURES CORP. 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
(Expresses in Canadian Dollars) 
As at 
 

 March 31, 

 2012 
 $ 

  

Assets  

Current  

Cash 86,736 

Taxes Recoverable 7,499 

 94,235 

Mineral Property Interest (Note 4) 56,200 

 150,435 

  

Liabilities  

Current  

 Payables and accruals 8,801 

 Due to related parties (Note 8) 13,998 

 22,799 

  

Equity  

Share capital (Note 5) 231,750 

Deficit (104,114) 

 127,636 

 150,435 

Nature and Continuance of Operations (Note 1) 
Corporate Restructuring and Commitment (Note 3) 
Subsequent Events (Note 11) 
 
These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on July 26,  2012.  They are 
signed on the Company’s behalf by: 
 
 
 
  

“Donald Gordon” “Thomas Bell” 
Director Director 

 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed financial statements.
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NEWLOX GOLD VENTURES CORP. 
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
 

  From April 7, 2011 
date of Incorporation to 

March 31, 2012 
$ 

   

Expenses   

 Administrative Costs   669  

 Consulting fees   13,575  

 Professional Fees   24,783  

 Management fees   28,350  

 Mining Property Expenses   28,616  

 Regulatory and transfer agent fees   8,121  

Net loss and comprehensive loss   (104,114)  

Basic and diluted loss per common share   (0.01)  

Weighted average no. of common shares outstanding  
 

9,273,202  

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed financial statements.
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NEWLOX GOLD VENTURES CORP. 
STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
 
 Share Capital 

Reserve 
$ 

Deficit 
$ 

Equity 
$ 

Number Amount 

 $ 

Share issued for cash on     

 Incorporation, April 7, 2011 1 1 - - 1 

Incorporation share cancelled (1) (1) - - (1) 

Shares issued per Arrangement Agreement 
(Note 3) 
 

7,800,911 61,200 - - 61,200 

Shares issued per Option Agreement – 
October 2011 250,000 500 - - 500 

Private Placement – November 2011 2,500,000 125,000 - - 125,000 

Finders’ Fee – November 2011 - (11,000) - - (11,000) 

Debt Settlement for Shares – February 2012 396,000 19,800 - - 19,800 

Private Placement – February 2012 500,000 25,000 - - 25,000 

Shares issued per Option Agreement – March 
2012 225,000 11,250 - - 11,250 

Net loss - - - (104,114) (104,114) 

Balance, March 31, 2012 11,671,991 231,750 - (104,114) 127,636 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed financial statements. 
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NEWLOX GOLD VENTURES CORP. 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
  From April 7, 2011 

Date of Incorporation to 
March 31, 2012 

$ 
  

 

Cash flows from operating activities   

 Net loss  (104,114)  

 Items not affecting cash                    31,550 

 Changes in non-cash working capital   

  Accounts receivable  (7,499)  

  Due to related parties  13,998  

  Payables and accruals  8,801  

 Net cash used in operating activities  (57,264)  

   

Cash flows from financing activities   

 Proceeds from private placement  150,000  

 Share issue costs  (11,000)  

 Net cash provided by operating activities  139,000  

    

Cash flows from investing activities    

      Corporate restructuring  5,000  

   

Increase in cash and cash equivalents  86,736  

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning  -  

   

   

Cash and cash equivalents, closing  86,736  

Significant non-cash activities   

Re-distribution of subsidiaries shares to 
shareholders 

 61,200  

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed financial statements. 
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NEWLOX GOLD VENTURES CORP. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
March 31, 2012 
 
 
Note 1 Nature and Continuance of Operations 
 
 
Newlox Gold Ventures Corp. (the “Company” or ‘Newlox’) was incorporated on April 7, 2011 and, pursuant to an 

arrangement agreement dated April 8, 2011 (the “Arrangement Agreement”) between the Company and Tulox Resources 

Inc. (“Tulox”), the Company was assigned the interest in the Tulox Property and $5,000 in cash from Tulox (the 

“Arrangement”), and commenced operations as a mineral property exploration company. The $5,000 deposited from 

Tulox as part of the Arrangement provided the Company with the capital necessary to fulfill its short-term needs. In 

consideration the Company issued 7,800,911 common shares to the Tulox shareholders (“Arrangement Shares”) who 

held Tulox shares on the share distribution record date set at August 25, 2011. 

 

The Company’s principal business following the Arrangement is to commence operations as a development stage 

company with the principal business being the exploration and development of mining properties. The Company may also 

acquire additional properties and will carry out early stage exploration on such mineral properties and then sell, option or 

joint venture the properties. The head office, principal address, and records office of the Company are located at 1111 

West Hastings Street, Suite 1220, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6E 2J3. 

 

These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting principal applicable to a going concern which 

assumes the Company will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business rather 

than through a process of forced liquidation. The Company’s continuing operations, as intended, and its financial success 

may be dependent upon the extent to which it can discover mineralization and the economic viability of developing any 

such additional properties. 

 

The discovery of mineralization and the development of mineral properties to the point where they may be sold, optioned 

or joint ventured may take years to complete and the amount of resulting income, if any, is difficult to determine with any 

certainty. As a development stage company, the company does not anticipate producing revenues for some time, other 

than from the sale, optioning or joint venturing of any mineral properties it may acquire and the sales of marketable 

securities. The sale value of any mineralization discovered by the Company and the value of the Company’s investments 

in marketable securities are not predictable. The success of the Company is largely dependent upon factors beyond its 

control. These factors raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going-concern. 

 

These financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded 

asset amounts and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue in 

existence. 

 
 
Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies 
 
 
Basis of presentation 
 
In conjunction with the Company’s annual audited consolidated financial statements to be issued under International 

Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) for the period from date of incorporation on April 7, 2011 to March 31, 2012, these 

consolidated financial statements present the Company’s financial results of operations and financial position as at March 

31, 2012 and for the period from date of incorporation on April 7, 2011 to March 31, 2012.  
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NEWLOX GOLD VENTURES CORP. 
NOTES TO THE CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
March 31, 2012 
 
 
Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
 
Basis of presentation (continued) 
 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) 

as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and interpretations of the International Financial 

Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”).   

 
These financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars, which is the Company’s functional and reporting currency. 

These financial statements are prepared on a historical cost basis except for financial instruments classified as fair value 

through profit or loss, which are stated at their fair value. 

 
Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make certain estimates, 

judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 

statements and the reported revenues and expenses during the period. 

 

Although management uses historical experience and its best knowledge of the amount, events or actions to form the 

basis for judgments and estimates, actual results may differ from these estimates. 

 

The most significant accounts that require estimates as the basis for determining the stated amounts include the 

recoverability of receivables, valuation of investments, valuation of share-based payments, and the valuation allowance 

for deferred income tax assets. 

 
Impairment 
 
At the end of each reporting period, the Company’s assets are reviewed to determine whether there is any indication that 

those assets may be impaired. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to 

determine the extent of the impairment, if any. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and 

value in use. Fair value is determined as the amount that would be obtained from the sale of the asset in an arm’s length 

transaction between knowledgeable and willing parties. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are 

discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value 

of money and the risks amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount and the impairment loss is recognized in 

the profit of loss for the period. For an asset that doses not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable 

amount is determined for the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

 

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased 

to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but to an amount that does not exceed the carrying amount that would 

have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A 

reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss. 
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NEWLOX GOLD VENTURES CORP. 
NOTES TO THE CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
March 31, 2012 
 
 
Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
 
Financial instruments 
 
Financial assets 
 
Financial assets are initially recognized at fair value and are classified into one of the following categories, depending on 

the purpose for which the asset was acquired. 

 

Fair value through profit or loss – derivatives or assets acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or 

repurchasing it in the near term. They are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with changes in fair 

value recognized in the statement of operations. 

 

Loans and receivables – non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an 

active market. They are carried at cost less any provision for impairment. Individually significant receivables are 

considered for impairment when they are past due or when other objective evidence is received that a specific 

counterparty will default. 

 

Held-to-maturity investments – non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities 

that the company’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. These assets are measured at 

amortized cost using the effective interest method. If there is objective evidence that the investment is impaired, 

determined by reference to external credit ratings and other relevant indicators, the financial asset is measured at the 

present value of estimated future cash flows. Any changes to the carrying amount of the investment, including impairment 

losses, are recognized in the statement of operations. 

 

Available-for-sale – non-derivative financial assets not included in the above categories are classified as available-for-

sale. They are carried at fair value with changes in fair value recognized directly in equity. Where a decline in the fair 

value of an available-for-sale financial asset constitutes objective evidence of impairment, the amount of the loss is 

removed from equity and recognized in the statement of operations. 

 

All financial assets except for those at fair value through profit or loss are subject to review for impairment at the minimum 

of at each reporting date. Financial assets are impaired when there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a 

group of financial assets is impaired. Different criteria to determine impairment are applied for each category of financial 

assets described above. 

 
Financial liabilities 
 
The Company classifies its financial liabilities into one of two categories: 

 

Fair value through profit or loss – derivatives or liabilities acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or 

repurchasing it in the near term. They are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with changes in fair 

value recognized in the statement of operations. 

 

Other financial liabilities – includes promissory notes, amounts due to related parties and payables and accruals, all of 

which are recognized at amortized cost. 
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NEWLOX GOLD VENTURES CORP. 
NOTES TO THE CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
March 31, 2012 
 
 
Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
 
Financial instruments (continued) 
 
Classification of Financial Instruments 
 
The Company has classified its cash as fair value through profit or loss; cash equivalents and deposit as held-to-maturity; 

receivables as loans and receivables; and payables and accruals as other financial liabilities. 

 
Share-based payments 
 
The Company applies the fair value method of accounting for stock option awards using the Black-Scholes option pricing 

model. Under this method, the Company recognizes compensation expenses for employee stock option awards, based on 

the grant date fair value, for each vesting installment, over the vesting period of the options. Each installment is valued 

separately, based on assumptions determined from historical data, and recognized as compensation expense over each 

installment’s individual tranche vesting period. Forfeiture estimates are recognized in the period they are estimated, and 

the revised for actual forfeitures in subsequent periods. 

 

In situations where stock option awards are issued to non-employees and some or all of the goods or services received by 

the entity as consideration cannot be specifically identified, they are measured at fair value of the share-based payment. 

Otherwise, share-based payments are measured at the fair value of goods or services received. 

 
Income taxes 
 
Income tax is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which 

case it is recognized in equity. Current tax expense is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using 

tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at period end, adjusted for amendments to tax payable with regards to 

previous years. 

 

Deferred tax is recorded using the statement of financial position liability method, providing for temporary differences 

between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation 

purposes. The following temporary differences are not provided for: goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial 

recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable loss; and differences relating to investments in 

subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred tax 

provided is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, 

using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date. 

 

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against 

which the asset can be utilized. To the extent that the Company does not consider it probable that a future tax will be 

recovered, it provides a valuation allowance against that excess. 

 

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognized at the same time as the liability to pay 

the related dividend. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current 

tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and 

the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. 
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NEWLOX GOLD VENTURES CORP. 
NOTES TO THE CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
March 31, 2012 
 
 
Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
 
 
Loss per share 
 
The Company uses the treasury stock method to compute the dilutive effect of options, warrants and similar instruments. 

Under this method the dilutive effect on loss per share is recognized on the use of proceeds that could be obtained upon 

exercise of options, warrants and similar instruments. It assumes that the proceeds would be used to purchase common 

shares at the average market price during the year. For the years presented, the dilutive effect has not been computed as 

it proved to be anti-dilutive. 

 

Basic loss per share has been calculated using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the 

period. 

 
Comprehensive income (loss) 
 
Comprehensive income (loss) is the change in the Company’s net assets that results from transactions, events and 

circumstances from sources other that the Company’s shareholders and includes items that are not included in net profit. 

Other comprehensive income consists of changes to unrealized gain and losses on available-for-sale financial assets, 

changes to unrealized gains and losses on the effective portion of cash flow hedges and changes to foreign currency 

translation adjustments of self-sustaining foreign operations during the period. Comprehensive income measures net 

earnings for the period plus other comprehensive income. Amounts reported as other comprehensive income are 

accumulated in separate component of equity as Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income. The Company has not had 

other comprehensive income since inception. 

 
Mineral exploration expenditures 
 
The Company’s accounting policy relating to mineral exploration expenditures is to expense all exploration expenditures 

when incurred. 

 

Significant costs related to property acquisitions are capitalized until the viability of the mineral interest is determined. 

When it has been established that a mineral interest is commercially mineable and an economic analysis has been 

completed, the costs subsequently incurred to develop a mine on the property prior to the start of mining operations are 

capitalized and will be amortized against production following commencement of commercial production, or written off if 

the property is sold, allowed to lapse or abandoned. 

 
Segment reporting 
 
A reportable segment, as defined by ‘IFRS 8 Operating Segments’, is a distinguishable business or geographical 

component of the Company, which are subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments. The 

Company considers its primary reporting format to be business segments. The Company considers that it has only one 

reportable segment, being the mineral exploration segment. 
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NEWLOX GOLD VENTURES CORP. 
NOTES TO THE CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
March 31, 2012 
 
 
Note 2 Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
 
Future changes in accounting policies 
 
The Company has reviewed new and revised accounting pronouncements that have been issued but are not yet effective 

and determined that the following may have an impact on the Company: 

 

IFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”: 

 

As of January 1, 2013, the Company will be required to adopt IFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”, which is the result of the 

first phase of the IASB’s project to replace IAS 39, “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”. The new 

standard replaces the current multiple classification and measurement models for financial assets and liabilities with a 

single model that has only two classification categories: amortized cost and fair value. The adoption of this standard 

should not have a material impact on the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements. 

 

IFRS 10, “Consolidated Financial Statements”: 

 

IFRS 10 is a new standard which identifies the concept of control as the determining factor in assessing whether an entity 

should be included in the consolidated financial statements of the parent company.  Control is comprised of three 

elements:  power over an investee; exposure to variable returns from an investee; and the ability to use power to affect 

the reporting entity’s returns.  IFRS 10 is effective for annual period beginning on or after January 1, 2013.  Earlier 

adoption is permitted. 

 

IFRS 11, “Joint Arrangements”: 

 

IFRS 11 is a new standard which focuses on classifying joint arrangements by their rights and obligations rather than their 

legal form.  Entities are classified into two groups:  parties having rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities of 

an arrangement, and rights to the net assets of an arrangement.  Entities in the former case account for assets, liabilities, 

revenues and expenses in accordance with the arrangement, whereas entities in the later case account for the 

arrangement using the equity method.  IFRS 11 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.  

Earlier application is permitted. 
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NEWLOX GOLD VENTURES CORP. 
NOTES TO THE CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
March 31, 2012 
 
 
Note 3 Corporate Restructure and Commitment 
 
 
The Company and Tulox entered into the Arrangement Agreement on April 8, 2011 to conduct a corporate restructuring 

by way of a statutory  plan of arrangement (the “Arrangement”) to transfer Tulox’s interest in the Tulox Property and 

$5,000 cash to the Company (the “Transfer”) which were completed on July 7, 2011 and August 23, 2011 respectively. As 

consideration for the Transfer, the Company issued 7,800,911 common shares to shareholders of Tulox on August 25, 

2011. The Arrangement Agreement was approved by Tulox’s shareholders on May 30, 2011 and by the Supreme Court of 

British Columbia on June 3, 2011. 

 

The Arrangement Agreement became effective on August 11, 2011. As a result, the Transfer was executed and the 

Company issued the Arrangement Shares to shareholders of Tulox as of August 25, 2011. 

 

As part of the Arrangement Agreement, all stock options issued by Tulox and outstanding as at August 11, 2011, the 

effective date (“Tulox Share Commitments”) would entitle the option holder to receive one common share of Tulox and 

one common share of the Company upon exercise. In consideration, the Company would be entitled to receive a 

percentage of the proceeds equal to the fair market value of the assets transferred to the Company divided by the fair 

market value of all assets of Tulox immediately prior to completion of the Arrangement. As at August 11, 2011, Tulox has 

250,000 outstanding stock options. Prior to the effective date of the Arrangement, holders of these Tulox Share 

Commitments as of August 10, 2011 had agreed to waive their rights to receive shares of the Company upon exercise of 

their Tulox stock options. 

 
 
Note 4 Mineral Property Interest 
 
 
Pursuant to an agreement dated May 7, 2007 and amended August 22, 2007, November 8, 2007, January 15, 2008, April 

15, 2008 and August 1, 2008, Tulox, the Company’s former parent company, agreed to acquire 13 mineral claims, 

collectively known as the Tulox Property, located in the Clinton Mining Division, British Columbia, Canada, from Amarc 

Resources Ltd. (“Amarc”) and another party. 

 

The agreement was changed to an option agreement dated April 21, 2009 and amended March 23, 2010 and July 27, 

2010 to acquire a 100% interest in the Tulox Property. 

 

Pursuant to agreement dated December 15, 2011 with Amarc Resources Ltd. (“Amarc”) Newlox may acquire a 100% 

interest in the Tulox property, which was previously held by Tulox Resources Inc. (now Argentium Resources Inc.) under 

the following terms: 

  

1)     Issue 250,000 common shares in the capital of the Company, following the issuance of shares of the Company 

pursuant to the Plan of Arrangement (now issued); 

2)     Issue 225,000 common shares in the capital of the Company, following the date of the execution of the agreement 

(now issued); 

3)     Expenditures of $250,000 CDN and a further 225,000 common shares in the capital of the Company on or before 

December 30, 2012; 

4)     Expenditures of $250,000 CDN and a further 225,000 common shares in the capital of the Company on or before 

April 30, 2013; 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars) 
March 31, 2012 
 
 
Note 4 Mineral Property Interest (continued) 
 
 
4)     a further $500,000 CDN of expenditures and 550,000 common shares in the capital of the Company on or before 

December 30, 2013; 

5)     an additional $1,000,000 CDN of expenditures and 1,100,000 common shares in the capital of the Company on or 

before December 1, 2014. 

 

Amarc has the right to obtain a 60% interest (“Back-In Right”) in the property on the preparation of a preliminary economic 

assessment or pre-feasibility study by Newlox, by completing an additional $10 million of mineral exploration expenditures 

on the property. Newlox must complete and deliver a preliminary economic assessment or pre-feasibility study be 

February 14, 2015. Newlox’s interest in the property and the option agreement will be deemed to be relinquished or 

abandoned if it fails to do so. 

 

Amarc retains a 3% net smelter royalty (“NSR”) return following the commencement of commercial production, which is 

reduced to 1.2% should Amarc exercise its 60% Back-In Right. 

 

On July 7, 2011, Tulox assigned the interest in the Tulox Property to the Company. The shareholders of Tulox at the time 

of the Arrangement continued to collectively own an interest in the Tulox Property, albeit through an altered corporate 

structure. Consequently, given that there was no substantive change in the beneficial ownership of the interest in the 

Tulox Property at the time that is was assigned to the Company, the transfer must be recorded under IFRS using the 

historical carrying values of the purchase agreement in the accounts of Tulox which was $56,200 at the time of the 

transfer. 

 
 
Note 5 Share Capital 
 
 
Authorized 
      Unlimited number of common shares without par value 
 
Common shares 
The total number of common shares issued and outstanding as of March 31, 2012 was 11,671,911. 

 

On August 25, 2011 the Company completed all outstanding obligations under the Arrangement Agreement between the 

Company, Tulox and a certain other party by issuing a total of 7,800,911 Arrangement Shares to Tulox shareholders as 

consideration for the Transfer from Tulox. As a result of completing the Arrangement and subsequent to issuing the 

Arrangement Shares, the Issuer became a reporting issuer in the jurisdictions of British Columbia and Alberta. 

 

On October 4, 2011 the Company issued 250,000 common shares to Amarc pursuant to s.4.2 (a) of the Tulox Property 

option agreement. 

 

On November 9, 2011 the Company issued 2,500,000 common shares at $0.05 per share for total proceeds of $125,000 

in connection with a private placement. Leede Financial Markets Inc. (“Leede”) received 220,000 share purchase warrants 

exercisable at $0.15 per share for a period of 18 months from November 9, 2011 and $11,000 cash as a finder’s fee with 

respect to $110,000 raised by Leede. 
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Note 5 Share Capital (continued) 
 
 
On February 14, 2012, the Company issued 396,000 common shares at $0.05 per share, to settle debt for services of 

$19,800. On February 14, 2012, the Company issued 500,000 common shares at $0.05 per share for a private placement 

made. 

 

On March 31, 2012 the Company issued 225,000 common shares to Amarc pursuant to s.4.2 (b) of the Tulox Property 

option agreement. 

 
 
Stock Options 
 
The company has adopted an incentive stock option plan (the “Option Plan”) which provides that the Board of Directors of 

the Company may from time to time, in its discretion, and in accordance with the applicable stock exchange’s 

requirements, grant to directors, officers, employees and consultants to the Company, non-transferable options to 

purchase common shares. Pursuant to the Option Plan, the number of common share reserved for issuance will not 

exceed 10% of the issued and outstanding common shares of the Company. Options granted under the Option Plan can 

have a maximum exercise term of 5 years from the date of grant. Vesting terms will be determined at the time of grant by 

the Board of Directors. As at and during  the period ended March 31, 2012, no options were granted or outstanding. 

 
 
Note 6 Capital Management 
 
 
The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, based on the funds available to the Company, in 

order to support future business opportunities. The Board of Directors does not establish quantitative return on capital 

criteria for management, but rather relies on the expertise of the Company’s management to sustain future development 

of the business. 

 

In order to carry future projects and pay for administrative costs, the Company will spend its existing working capital and 

raise additional funds as needed. Management reviews its capital management approach on an ongoing basis and 

believes that this approach, given the relative size of the Company, is reasonable. 

 

There were no changes in the Company’s approach to capital management during the period ended March 31, 2012. The 

Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements. 

 
 
 
Note 7 Financial Instruments 
 
 
The Company has classified fair value measurements of its financial instruments using a fair value hierarchy that reflects 

the significance of inputs used in making the measurements as follows: 

 

Level 1 – Valuation based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets of liabilities; 
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Note 7 Financial Instruments (continued) 
 
 

Level 2 – Valuations based on directly or indirectly observable inputs in active markets for similar assets or liabilities, other 

than Level 1 prices, such as quoted interest of currency exchange rates; and 

 

Level 3 – Valuations based on significant inputs that are not derived from observable market data, such as discounted 

cash flow methodologies based on internal cash flow forecasts. 

 

As at March 31, 2012, the Company’s financial instruments consists of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, 

accounts payable and accrued liabilities, and amounts due to related parties. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at 

fair value using a level 1 fair value measurement.  The carrying value of accounts receivable, accounts payable and 

accrued liabilities approximate their fair value because of their nature and respective maturity dates or durations. 

 

Unless otherwise noted, it is management’s option that the Company is not exposed to significant credit, liquidity or 

market risks arising from these financial instruments.  The fair value of these financial instruments approximates their 

carrying value, unless otherwise noted. 

 

a) Foreign currency risk - The Company’s activities that result in exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange 

rates consist of the sale of products to customers invoiced in foreign currencies and the purchase of services, materials, 

and property and equipment from suppliers invoiced in foreign currencies.  The Company does not use derivative 

instruments to hedge its currency risk.   

 

b) Market risk - Market risk is the risk that changes in market conditions, such as input parts prices, interest rates, and 

foreign exchange rates, will affect the Company's cash flows or the value of its financial instruments. The objective of 

market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable limits, while maximizing 

returns. The Company does not utilize financial derivatives or other contracts to manage market risks. 

 

c) Liquidity risk - Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in paying obligations as they come due. 

The Company's financial liabilities consist of accounts payable, and related party payables. Accounts payable consists of 

invoices payable to trade suppliers for capital and operating expenditures and for general corporate expenses. The 

Company processes invoices within a normal payment period. These funds will be used to defray the development and 

certification costs related to the project.  Related party payables do not bear any interest and are provided on a non-

secured basis.  The Company prepares funds from operations and capital expenditure budgets, which are regularly 

monitored and updated. 
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Note 8 Related Party Transactions 
 
 
The Company and Tulox, its former parent company, entered into the Arrangement Agreement described in Note 3. The 

Arrangement Agreement provides for the transfer from Tulox of $5,000 and the interest in the Tulox Property to the 

Company, as a wholly-owned subsidiary, and the immediate distribution of a controlling interest in the common shares of 

the Company to the shareholders of Tulox as at August 25, 2011. The shareholders of Tulox at the completion of the 

Arrangement Agreement will continue to collectively own the interest in the Tulox Property, albeit through an altered 

corporate structure. Consequently, given that there will be no substantive change in the beneficial ownership of the option 

agreement at the time that it is transferred to the Company, the transfer will be recorded under IFRS using the historical 

carrying values of the interest in the Tulox Property in the accounts of Tulox at the time of the transfer. 

 

During the year ended March 31, 2012, the Company incurred $5,100 in management fees from a company owned and 

controlled by its President and at March 31, 2012 the Company owes the President and his company $4,614 for 

management fees which have been included in due to related parties. 

 

During the year ended March 31, 2012, the Company incurred $13,800 in management fees from a company owned and 

controlled by a Director and at March 31, 2012 the Company owes the Director and his company $9,384 for management 

fees which have been included in due to related parties. 

 

All transactions with related parties have occurred in the normal course of operations and are measured at their fair value 

as determined by management. Unless otherwise indicated, the period-end balances are unsecured, non-interest bearing, 

without specific terms of repayment and have arisen from advances or the provision of services and fees described. 

 
 
Note 9 Segmented Information 
 
 
During the year ended March 31, 2012, the Company had one reportable operation segment, being the acquisition, 

exploration, and disposition of interests in mineral property located in one geographical segment, Canada. 

 

 
Note 10 Income Taxes 
 
 

The following table reconciles the amount of income tax recoverable on application of the combined statutory 
Canadian federal and provincial income tax rates: 

       2012 

Combined statutory tax rate    27.25% 

Income tax recovery at combined statutory rate    $        (28,371) 
Valuation allowance    28,371 

Future income tax recovery    $                  - 
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Note 10 Income Taxes (continued) 
 

 

Significant components of the Company’s future income tax assets (liabilities) are shown below:  

     2012 
   
Non-capital loss carry forwards   $         29,029 

 
Resource reductions   21,204 
Less: valuation allowance   (47,233) 

Net future income tax liability   $                  - 
 
As at March 31, 2012, the Company had approximately $104,114 of non-capital loss carry forwards available to 
reduce taxable income for future years. The non-capital losses expire in 2032. 
 

 

 
Note 11 Subsequent Events 
 

 
 

The Company has paid cash in lieu through Amarc Resources Ltd.  to the British Columbia Mineral Titles branch to keep 

all its claims in good standing to September 30, 2012. 
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